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 1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
   
 2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before
   
 3  the Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
   
 4  Committee in Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 2:01 p.m.
   
 5  on the 6th of January, 2022, with all participants
   
 6  appearing via videoconference.
   
 7 
    BEFORE:  PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman
 8 
   
 9  APPEARANCES:
   
10  For the Applicant:
   
11       Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
         Law Department
12       Ms. Linda Benally, Senior Attorney, Regulatory
         400 North Fifth Street
13       Phoenix, Arizona 85004
   
14       and
   
15       Snell & Wilmer, L.L.P.
         Mr. J. Matthew Derstine
16       One Arizona Center
         400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900
17       Phoenix, Arizona 85004
   
18 
    Also Present:
19 
       Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS
20     Kevin Duncan, Senior Line Siting Consultant, APS
       David F. Wiley, Supervisor, Engineering T&D, APS
21     Randy Simpson, Environmental Consultant, Burns and
       McDonnell
22     Anna Chaulk, Federal/State Senior Regulatory
       Analyst, APS
23     Aileen De Los Angeles, Paralegal, APS
       Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Katz
24 
   
25 
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 1      CHMN. KATZ: This is the time set for a
 2  prefiling conference in the West Valley Central
 3  Project, which will probably be numbered CEC 198.  I
 4  can't say that with a hundred percent certainty, but
 5  I'm fairly certain that will be the case.
 6      Well, let me just ask the attorneys who are
 7  representing the applicant to please identify
 8  themselves, if they would.
 9      MS. BENALLY: Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.
10  Linda Benally representing APS.
11      CHMN. KATZ: You're muted, Matt.
12      MR. DERSTINE: There we go.
13      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
14      MR. DERSTINE: Happy new year.
15      CHMN. KATZ: Happy new year.  And it's Matt
16  Derstine, correct?
17      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah, Matt Derstine, also
18  representing APS.
19      CHMN. KATZ: And have we had any possible
20  intervenors?  I may have already asked that, but I just
21  wanted to make sure.  Has anyone expressed a desire to
22  possibly intervene in this matter and are you expecting
23  any actual intervention?
24      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, to our knowledge,
25  there are no known intervenors at this point.  There


Page 5


 1  are a number of stakeholders that are -- that APS has
 2  been working with, but none have indicated an interest
 3  to intervene at this point.
 4      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And has there been any
 5  public interest expressed by members of the general
 6  public?  I know that our notice of hearing hasn't gone
 7  out yet, but I just don't know whether or not there's
 8  been any pre-application publicity.
 9      MS. BENALLY: Let me punt that question over
10  to Mr. Derstine.  If he doesn't have the information,
11  I'll have one of our line siting members address the
12  issue.
13      MR. DERSTINE: Yes, thank you.  And I'll let
14  our environmental consultant correct or add to whatever
15  my general understanding is.
16      There has been significant outreach to
17  stakeholders, landowners in the area of this project.
18  We've worked, I think, extensively with a couple of
19  landowners, as well as the municipalities which are in
20  the vicinity of the project.  And so there is interest
21  in the project and we have worked with these various
22  stakeholders.  It's largely a commercial/industrial
23  area and it's in early stages of development with
24  regard to some of these parcels, and so there have been
25  certainly preferences expressed as to routes or the
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 1  location of the line either on one side or another of a
 2  route.
 3      And so the routes that we're bringing forward
 4  in the application reflect that outreach and our
 5  efforts to accommodate the interests and the desires of
 6  the various landowners and stakeholders, and so that
 7  will be reflected in the application.  So there is
 8  interest.  We've done our best to accommodate those
 9  interests where we can, and you'll see that in the
10  application, as well as the testimony.
11      CHMN. KATZ: Who are the interested parties,
12  that is, the political subdivisions, county, et cetera,
13  government agencies, that might be interested in
14  participating in this matter?
15      MR. DERSTINE: I don't -- I think Ms. Benally
16  is correct that they don't have an interest and haven't
17  expressed a desire to participate in the proceeding,
18  but they have expressed an interest and expressed, you
19  know, various preferences for routes and locations of
20  lines.
21      And so, Randy, could you tick off the
22  municipalities and the private stakeholders that we
23  have worked with over the course of planning of the
24  project?
25      MR. SIMPSON: Yeah.  There's been a pretty
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 1  extensive group that we worked with.  The major
 2  jurisdictions in the area include the City of Surprise,
 3  the City of El Mirage, the Town of Youngtown, Maricopa
 4  County, the City of Peoria, the City of Glendale.  And
 5  we've also worked extensively with Luke Air Force Base
 6  that has a significant interest in the project area in
 7  relationship to the Air Force Base operations.
 8      As Matt mentioned, we have also worked with a
 9  number of large landowners and members of the public
10  throughout the last, I guess, almost 18 months, and
11  that process has been working really well.  We've
12  gotten a lot of good feedback, lots of good
13  participation.  And we will be doing one more round of
14  briefings with those jurisdictions prior to heading
15  into the hearings to give them an update on where the
16  hearings -- how the hearings are going to proceed and
17  what we're going to be presenting.  That's going to be
18  happening in the next couple of weeks.
19      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And I did receive, and I
20  guess I could -- I received four or five exhibits.  I
21  believe the first one was a map depicting the project
22  area.  The second one is showing the preferred routes.
23  In other words, the first map I have, and I call it
24  Exhibit 1, is the project study area.  The next map I
25  received, we'll call it Exhibit 2, is the West Valley
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 1  Central preferred route map.  And then I have another
 2  map that more specifically -- that I marked as
 3  Exhibit 3, we can change those, but West Valley Central
 4  230 kV Connection Project, and it shows where the sign
 5  locations are going to be, where the signs are going to
 6  be posted along the proposed route or routes.  And
 7  lastly, I received a notice of public hearing document,
 8  which we can call Exhibit 4.
 9      If you want to renumber these, that's fine,
10  but those should all be Applicant's Exhibits 1 through
11  4.  Any thoughts on that?
12      MR. DERSTINE: No.  I think you have --
13  you've ticked off the exhibits that we have submitted
14  and I think that's the order in which we would talk
15  about them.  1 is kind of the notification study area.
16  Well, depending on how you want to address the issues,
17  1 would be the notification study area.  The second is
18  to talk briefly about the routes within the study area.
19  And then when you want to get to the issue of signs,
20  we're happy to bring that up and indicate where we
21  think are good locations for the signs and get your
22  input on that.  And the last is our draft notice of
23  hearing just for you and Tod to review.
24      CHMN. KATZ: Right.  And we have received
25  that in Word format.  And we'll probably tweak it,
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 1  depending on what we discuss here today and any of our
 2  own idiosyncrasies.  But it looked pretty good to me
 3  and I understood all of these maps.  But if you wanted
 4  to give me a brief explanation of everything or have
 5  one of your APS representatives do that, that would be
 6  fine.
 7      MR. DERSTINE: Well, maybe it makes sense
 8  just to briefly touch on the study area, and we can
 9  talk about --
10      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
11      MR. DERSTINE: -- how that was used to define
12  our notifications, how many, generally, addresses that
13  encompasses, and then you can let us know if you have
14  further questions on that.
15      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
16      MR. DERSTINE: Randy or Kevin, who would like
17  to just talk about the study area, how we arrived at
18  that -- what we've defined as the study or the
19  notification area, and then, you know, a bit in terms
20  of our outreach and the addresses that our notices and
21  mailings have gone to up to date.
22      MR. SIMPSON: Kevin, do you want me to take
23  that?
24      MR. DUNCAN: Yeah, go ahead, Randy.  I'm
25  bringing the map up.
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 1      MR. SIMPSON: Okay.  Thank you.
 2      The first map that we're looking at here was
 3  our initial study area that was defined by not only the
 4  engineers, but by the environmental consultant.  And
 5  what we really wanted to accomplish here is to find a
 6  large enough study area that would account for all the
 7  potential alternatives that could meet the purpose and
 8  need of the project and then make sure that we had
 9  enough of a buffer around any alternatives that we were
10  evaluating that we could make proper notice to all the
11  jurisdictional participants, as well as the private
12  stakeholders.
13      And as Matt mentioned, this area is quite
14  large.  I believe it's approximately 40-some square
15  miles, and it consists of all those jurisdictions that
16  I mentioned previously.  And there are about
17  30,000-plus residences -- I should say, mailing
18  addresses that our notices went out to.  And that
19  includes a number of residences that are in the area, a
20  number of businesses, landowners who may not live in
21  this area but own some of the vacant farmland or
22  undeveloped land that is in the area.  And in some
23  cases, those parties were actually out of state and not
24  necessarily residing in the Phoenix metro area or in
25  Arizona.  That's not uncommon for this type of study.
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 1  But yeah, it was a very large study area and did
 2  include a mailing list of approximately 30,000-plus
 3  people.  And we did get quite a bit of participation
 4  through the process from the individuals in the study
 5  area.
 6      And generally speaking, the northern boundary
 7  of that study area was approximately Waddell Road.  The
 8  western boundary is Cotton Lane.  The southern boundary
 9  is kind of the Northern Parkway and then the Glendale
10  Avenue area when you get more to the southeast.  And
11  then the eastern area is approximately 103rd Avenue, I
12  believe that is.  And so, again, it's a pretty large
13  area.  You have the Loop 303 recently built on the
14  western side, there's Northern Parkway, is
15  approximately 90 percent constructed all the way
16  through our study area.  The last bit of construction
17  is happening in this southern area.
18      But what is unique about this area, as Matt
19  mentioned, is it's very aggressive in terms of the
20  amount of development plans that are being proposed
21  through this area.  What you'll see, if you were to
22  drive out there today, is new buildings that are
23  actually already under construction that are not even
24  captured necessarily with the aerial imagery that we
25  have here.  And we have a lot of new developments that
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 1  are being proposed by developers, and they are going
 2  through the entitlement permitting process with the
 3  cities right now.  And especially in the last four
 4  months we've been working very closely with a number of
 5  those large landowners and developers to make sure that
 6  we really understood the nature of their projects and
 7  tried to get as much support as we can for locating the
 8  line.
 9      Much of this land is going to be developed
10  for business park and light industrial uses, which are
11  usually heavy users.  And for the most part, we have a
12  lot of support for the purpose and need on the project.
13  Those type of users, their projects benefit from
14  quality power and adequate power supplies.  And so the
15  feedback we got from them was positive with respect to
16  the need of the project, and then we were trying to
17  work closely with them on finding ways to route the
18  line to minimize any impacts to the proposed
19  developments that they have.  And that worked pretty
20  well for us, so we're going to be excited to tell you
21  more about that during our testimony.
22      CHMN. KATZ: I think I was muted.  I was just
23  saying, that sounds good to me.
24      And the hearing is going to actually be at
25  the Glendale Civic Center, correct?
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 1      MR. DERSTINE: That's right.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: Do you want to cover the
 3  Exhibit 2, which is showing the preferred routes?  I
 4  don't know if we need to go into detail on that.  It
 5  looks like that it's primarily going through either
 6  undeveloped areas or industrial or commercial areas.
 7  And I don't know whether Luke Air Force Base has any
 8  difficulties, but you're not within the high noise and
 9  accident potential zones.
10      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  I mean, Randy, if you
11  or Kevin just briefly -- you mentioned the purpose and
12  need.  Just identify the purpose and need, which I
13  understand to be largely to -- we're going to connect
14  this Contrail substation, which is being constructed to
15  support a new data center in the area, but the project
16  is also intended to serve a lot of this growth that
17  we're seeing in the West Valley that Randy mentioned
18  and identified in these -- a lot of these larger
19  industrial or commercial users that surround the new
20  data center.  But if anyone wants to expand on that and
21  then just briefly touch on the routes that we're
22  presenting in the application, I think that might be
23  helpful.
24      MR. DUNCAN: Yeah.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine
25  and Mr. Chairman.  I'm going to ask Mr. Wiley, who's on
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 1  the call.  He's the transmission planner -- in charge
 2  of the transmission planning for this project and he
 3  can speak more directly to the purpose and need.
 4      MR. WILEY: Sure.  Thank you, Mr. Duncan.
 5      As Mr. Derstine stated, the primary purpose
 6  for this project is to serve a new data center, which
 7  will be served out of the Contrail substation here
 8  noted in yellow towards the middle of the screen.
 9      Mr. Duncan, if you can point to that location
10  there.
11      We're looking at having a few different lines
12  coming into this substation.  Starting on the western
13  side of this map near the 303 and Olive Avenue is the
14  APS planned TS-2 substation.  From this location we
15  have a couple of 230 kV lines.  We'd be interconnecting
16  that substation and extending a line eastward along
17  Olive Avenue, kind of skirting around the accident
18  prevention zone, up and around, and down into the
19  Contrail substation.
20      From there we'll continue to connect the
21  Contrail substation into existing transmission lines of
22  APS to the east.  We'll have two different paths to do
23  so, one going north connecting in and the other one
24  going out and reconnecting into the existing
25  transmission corridor.
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 1      So at the end, we'll have three separate
 2  230 kV paths serving the Contrail substation.  So not
 3  only does this give us the ability to serve the data
 4  center -- as noted, the area here between Contrail to
 5  the west to the TS-2 planned substation is an area of
 6  high development.  So whether that's new data centers
 7  that come in, warehouse, distribution, et cetera, these
 8  lines will be able to support the additional growth in
 9  this area.
10      I'll pause there for any questions.
11      CHMN. KATZ: So I'm assuming, though, on the
12  west there, that future substation is one of the
13  elements of this project?  In other words, we have the
14  substation at -- is Contrail the name of that
15  substation, going back east, or is that just the
16  location of the data center and the little yellow box
17  is the substation that will be built on their property?
18      MR. WILEY: Mr. Chairman, Contrail is the
19  name of the substation that will serve the data center
20  in yellow.
21      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  The data center is in
22  yellow and the substation is in purple or whatever
23  color that is?
24      MR. WILEY: Excuse me.  Let me correct
25  myself.  The campus itself is in purple and the
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 1  substation would be in yellow.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: Right.  That's what I thought
 3  originally.  And then when we move to the west, that
 4  second substation -- in other words, there will be a
 5  substation built at Contrail, there will be another
 6  substation built to the west on or near Olive Avenue?
 7      MR. WILEY: There is a planned substation,
 8  TS-2, that will not be part of the CEC.  That has been
 9  included on a previous CEC.  I don't have that number.
10      Ms. Benally, do you happen to know what CEC
11  that is?
12      MS. BENALLY: Go ahead, Mr. Simpson.
13      MR. SIMPSON: Yeah, I do.  I believe that was
14  Case 122, which was the West Valley South Transmission
15  Project.
16      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.
17      MR. SIMPSON: And so the line that was
18  mentioned earlier, the line is actually constructed.
19  The substation is going to be constructed to coincide
20  with construction of this line, but it was previously
21  in the other application.
22      CHMN. KATZ: So in other words, that blue
23  dotted or dashed line is already constructed?
24      MR. SIMPSON: Correct.
25      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  That makes sense.  I


Page 17


 1  understand that map.
 2      I don't know if you need to go into detail
 3  about the sign locations.  It looks like they're all
 4  along public roadways.  I'm assuming that they would
 5  all be visible to the public and could be -- someone
 6  could pull over a vehicle to look at them in detail?
 7      MR. SIMPSON: That is correct.  We tried to
 8  locate those strategically where somebody driving or
 9  somebody walking would be able to safely view the board
10  either pulling off the shoulder of the road or pulling
11  off a secondary access road that is adjacent to it.  We
12  should be able to do that.  The roads are pretty wide
13  and the shoulders are pretty wide in most areas, so it
14  should accommodate that pretty easily.
15      And then in a couple of cases we actually
16  have them located where there are residential
17  communities.  So it would be easy for the folks who
18  live in there, that might be walking around the edges
19  of the community, to see the sign as well.
20      CHMN. KATZ: That sounds good.  And I did
21  receive the exhibit for the notice of public hearing,
22  and that's yet to be published, obviously.  And I also
23  have the draft of the notice of hearing itself.
24      So I just need to confirm with Tod, are we
25  looking at a February 28th date beginning at 1:00 p.m?
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 1      MR. BREWER: That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  Does that date work for
 3  everyone?
 4      MS. BENALLY: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
 5      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
 6      CHMN. KATZ: Thank you.
 7      And this time we'll probably have mostly
 8  people that are located in the Phoenix metropolitan
 9  area at least that are working for the State, but we do
10  have some out-of-towners.  So I'm assuming that there
11  will be lodging available for out-of-town Committee
12  Members?
13      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
14      Kevin, have we gotten -- we were in the
15  process, Mr. Chairman, of identifying the suitable
16  hotel.  As you mentioned, the hearing will take place
17  at the Glendale Convention Center.  We wanted to make
18  sure that we had a good hotel accommodation, so we may
19  be a couple miles away from the Convention Center in
20  terms of the accommodations.  And we were still in the
21  process of confirming that best hotel for that.
22      Kevin or Randy, Mr. Simpson or Mr. Duncan, do
23  you have any update on that?
24      MR. DUNCAN: Yes, Mr. Derstine, I do.  Just a
25  moment here.  I'm pulling up the -- it's the Holiday
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 1  Inn in Glendale Stadium and Entertainment District is
 2  the name of the hotel, and that is at 6151 North 99th
 3  Avenue in Glendale.
 4      MR. SIMPSON: Yeah.  That location is
 5  approximately 4 miles due west of the Civic Center.  So
 6  it's a little bit further away, but the benefits of
 7  that facility is it's a newer facility, it's more
 8  modern, has WiFi and some better accommodations, and
 9  there's also quite a few restaurants in that area.  So
10  if folks need to get some meals during the evening,
11  they'll have a lot of choices in that area.
12      The motel options that were a little bit
13  closer we didn't feel like were the best accommodations
14  and didn't allow for the number of choices of
15  restaurants and things of that nature.  So we felt
16  like, even though it's a little bit of a drive, it was
17  probably the best location for people to stay.
18      CHMN. KATZ: That sounds good.  And moving on
19  to a different subject matter, I don't know whether or
20  not you were planning to have a van or a bus available
21  for a tour of the route and whether or not you think
22  it's going to be helpful to the Committee, at least
23  those who are present in person.
24      MR. DERSTINE: Yeah.  So we have discussed
25  that, and we will have something in the size of a
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 1  15-passenger van available for the Committee if they
 2  decide that they want to take an actual tour.  I know
 3  that the Committee has not been on a drive-around tour
 4  for the past several hearings, and there's been
 5  discussion in the last couple hearings that there's an
 6  expressed desire by certain Members of the Committee,
 7  and maybe the Committee entirely, that they'd like to
 8  get back to taking the real route tours.  I guess we
 9  just don't know whether this is the right case or the
10  time given Omicron and the things that are happening
11  with the variant.
12      But I think the Committee has indicated that
13  they desire to take a route tour when it would be
14  helpful and whether there is something to see.  I think
15  the past couple of cases there really hasn't been
16  anything to see.  We had a very short gen-tie case
17  there in Tucson.  And prior to that, there was the
18  Intel expansion case, and there was really very limited
19  ability to get to see anything of that project.  Some
20  of it was underground, and the portions that were going
21  to be constructed aboveground you didn't have access to
22  because of the construction.
23      So with all that, I think we would say that
24  we're prepared to support and provide a route tour for
25  the Committee.  I think, as has been mentioned, there
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 1  is a fair amount of construction going on, but I think
 2  it's fair to say and accurate that we can come up with
 3  a tour that allows the Committee to see the routes that
 4  we're presenting in the application to support the
 5  purpose and need for the project.
 6      CHMN. KATZ: That's perfectly fine.  I don't
 7  know what the Committee will want to do.  Some of these
 8  projects that involve primarily the installation of
 9  power lines aren't necessarily intriguing unless we're
10  going through areas of significant disturbance or
11  concern.
12      I also am not sure with this Omicron variant.
13  I think most of us, especially those of us who have
14  been vaccinated and boosted, were feeling pretty open
15  and good about things.  Now you see all these
16  infections of people that have been vaccinated and
17  boosted.  I don't know what the attitude of the
18  Committee will be a month from right now -- or, a
19  little over a month from right now.  We'll have to play
20  that somewhat by ear.
21      I also just -- I talked to Jack Haenichen
22  today.  He's having some medical issues primarily with
23  his back.  I won't get into any greater detail.  He
24  thinks he'll be healthy and ready to join us for that
25  hearing in February, but that's still somewhat of an
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 1  uncertainty.
 2      I also have no way of knowing -- we've had,
 3  pretty consistently, four to six Committee Members that
 4  have chosen regularly to appear virtually.  Some of
 5  them are in Tucson and don't feel like making the
 6  drive.  But I just don't know if we want to take a tour
 7  if there's only three or four or five of us that want
 8  to go on a tour and the rest are sitting there at home
 9  or in their offices.
10      So we can play that by ear.  I just would
11  like you to think about being prepared, and we can
12  cover that once again when we have our prehearing
13  conference.
14      MR. DERSTINE: All right.  We'll be ready.
15      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman.
16      CHMN. KATZ: Yes.
17      MS. BENALLY: I would like to just note that
18  in the draft notice of hearing that we have marked as
19  Exhibit 4 --
20      CHMN. KATZ: Right.
21      MS. BENALLY: -- that does note that there is
22  no tour planned at the time.  So when we get to that
23  point or when you're reviewing that, just note that's
24  how we have drafted it for your consideration.
25      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  And again, I don't know
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 1  whether it makes sense to take a tour.  I know when we
 2  go to our hearing that will probably get kicked back
 3  sometime soon in Tucson, the Kino matter, the TEP
 4  matter is probably going to get continued next week
 5  until July, so we'll have some breathing time.
 6      But we'll try to stay in touch with you.  I
 7  don't know whether you should plan for a tour or maybe
 8  -- or do you think it's better to plan for the tour and
 9  then decide not to take it?
10      MR. DERSTINE: Well, the only thing I would
11  say about that is, we have to make arrangements for a
12  suitable van to carry all the Committee Members who
13  will be present, and so we need to reserve that in
14  advance.  And then if the Committee elects not to take
15  a tour, then we have to quickly cancel it, and we don't
16  always necessarily have the grace to cancel it without
17  paying a fee.  But, I mean, it is what it is.  I mean,
18  if the Committee votes to take the tour, it's our job
19  and our obligation to be ready to support that.
20      And so if there was a mechanism so that we
21  would know in advance, by the prehearing conference or
22  at least prior to the start of the hearing, whether or
23  not the Committee desired to take a tour, that would
24  make it easier in terms of reserving the van.  But, you
25  know, that's just the way these things go, so we'll
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 1  make sure we're ready.
 2      CHMN. KATZ: Right.  And I think maybe --
 3  I'll discuss the matter with Tod, we don't need to take
 4  up the time now -- but it might be better to say there
 5  will be a tour and then cancel it than not.  And
 6  obviously, by the time we have our prehearing
 7  conference, we can probably determine that.  And I have
 8  at least one hearing coming up before yours, so I can
 9  ask the Committee whether they might want to take a
10  tour on our next adventure on the west side of Phoenix.
11      Do we have a date that you think would be
12  good for us all, Tod, for a prehearing conference?
13      MR. BREWER: Mr. Chairman, it looks like the
14  best date would be February the 23rd at 2:00.
15      CHMN. KATZ: Does that work for everyone or
16  is that going to be a problem?
17      MR. DERSTINE: It works for me.
18      CHMN. KATZ: Ms. Benally?
19      MS. BENALLY: I'm sorry.  I was just checking
20  my calendar.
21      CHMN. KATZ: Oh, that's fine.  That's fine.
22      MS. BENALLY: I'm available that day.  Thank
23  you, Mr. Chairman.
24      CHMN. KATZ: Okay.  That's fine.
25      And I know that a lot of our Committee
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 1  Members are more than happy to get copies of the
 2  application and the exhibits online.  I always like a
 3  hard copy, even though I'll regularly use the iPad or
 4  whatever electronic device you might be providing us
 5  with.
 6      I think you've done enough of these.  I don't
 7  think you need me to give you an education on what
 8  needs to be contained in the draft procedural order,
 9  but I'd like to get --
10      Tod, do we normally just prepare that on our
11  own or do we ask them to provide it?  I think we
12  usually just issue that, don't we?
13      MR. BREWER: That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
14      CHMN. KATZ: Right.  And we'll probably
15  follow the same format that we normally have, unless
16  there's some particular idiosyncrasy that is in this
17  case, and it doesn't seem like there are.
18      And we'll also, at some point in time, need
19  draft conditions for the CEC.  I don't think there will
20  be anything unusual here, but we'll need that in Word,
21  and we'll probably end up transcribing that into PDF.
22  And Ms. Benally and Mr. Derstine, you've been through
23  this, so have many of your APS people before, where
24  we'll post the one on the left side that will be
25  probably the original and on the right side we'll make
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 1  our changes, but we'll get that figured out when we get
 2  there.
 3      We'll start our hearing on the 28th at
 4      1:00 p.m. and run until about 4:30 or at the latest
 5      5:00.  And we'll then have our public comments, if any,
 6  at about 5:30 p.m.  And if we have any public official,
 7  such as a mayor or a councilman or the like, that we
 8  need to give priority to, we'll take care of doing
 9  that.
10      I next wanted to ask, are there any federal,
11  county, city, town, or state applications or permits
12  that have yet to be approved?  I know a lot of them
13  wouldn't be approved until you have your routes in
14  place, but I just didn't know if you had any
15  anticipated problems with acquiring permits.
16      MR. DERSTINE: Mr. Chairman, no.  There are
17  no federal permitting issues with this particular
18  project.  And so really the only applicable permits
19  will be the typical construction permits that we would
20  require at the time that we're ready to proceed with
21  construction.
22      CHMN. KATZ: And there's no federal land or
23  property involved, so we don't need to worry about
24  NEPA?
25      MR. DERSTINE: That's correct.
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 1      CHMN. KATZ: And I'm asking a question that I
 2  already know the answer to, but I'm assuming that there
 3  will be good WiFi and laptop access at the facility and
 4  the applications and exhibits will be available either
 5  on a flash drive preloaded into either laptops or iPads
 6  or similar devices?
 7      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.
 8      CHMN. KATZ: And are there any other issues
 9  that you can think of right now that we have failed to
10  cover?
11      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, I have just a
12  couple of items I'd like to note.
13      CHMN. KATZ: Sure, Ms. Benally.
14      MS. BENALLY: Thank you.  In the notice of
15  hearing, or the draft that we've sent to you, the two
16  public locations where we will be placing the
17  applications and transcripts are the Glendale Public
18  Library and then the City of Peoria City Hall.  So I'd
19  just like to note that.
20      The second item I'd like to mention is the
21  newspaper publications that we'll be using are the
22  Arizona Republic and the Surprise Independent.  We
23  would like to ask for, I guess, your cooperation, not
24  that we don't ever receive it.  But for the Surprise
25  Independent, it's a small paper, and they publish on
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 1  Wednesdays every week.  So they have one publication a
 2  week, and they would need our notice of hearing the
 3  date that we file our application.  We'll certainly do
 4  all the preliminary work to notice the newspaper and
 5  inform them -- provide all the text that's needed for
 6  the notice of hearing, but we would need the signed
 7  document, as well as the docket number, which we'll get
 8  from the Commission when we file.  But just wanted to
 9  alert you to the timing sensitivity for that particular
10  newspaper publication.
11      CHMN. KATZ: And we're usually pretty good
12  at, within 24 hours, absent weekends, getting whatever
13  is sent to us with whatever edits we might make, we're
14  usually pretty good at signing that and the procedural
15  order and the agenda.
16      MR. DUNCAN: Ms. Benally and Mr. Chairman,
17  while we've been on this call we have received
18  information that the Surprise Independent is able to
19  accept our adjustments until Friday at 10:00 a.m.
20  Obviously, we don't want to push it to that, but that
21  alleviates the problem of having to have it in on the
22  same day.  So obviously, we still would want to get it
23  to them as fast as possible to make sure that we don't
24  run into any problems, but just wanted to share that
25  information.


Page 29


 1      CHMN. KATZ: Well, absent illness or some
 2  unexpected event, we usually will get those out within
 3  24 hours of receipt, so that shouldn't be a problem.
 4      MR. DUNCAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
 5      CHMN. KATZ: And do we want the court
 6  reporting company to place final transcripts of
 7  conferences and hearings to be posted on your
 8  website -- on APS's website or not?
 9      MR. DERSTINE: Yes.  I think the typical
10  practice is that the court reporter sends us a copy of
11  the transcripts and we will place them on the project
12  website.  And then I think they will handle delivery of
13  the transcripts to the library locations that we've
14  identified in the draft notice of hearing.
15      CHMN. KATZ: Sounds good to me.  Is there
16  anything else that we need to discuss?
17      MS. BENALLY: Mr. Chairman, just one other
18  item.
19      CHMN. KATZ: Sure.
20      MS. BENALLY: In the notice of hearing that
21  we sent to you, there are two Exhibit As that are
22  attached.  They're the map and they are identical in
23  content; however, they're just laid out differently.
24  One is in a portrait format, the other is in a
25  landscape, so to speak.  So I just provided both of
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 1  those to you so you can determine which one you would
 2  like to use for the notice of hearing.
 3      CHMN. KATZ: That's more than adequate.
 4      And beyond that, I didn't talk to most of you
 5  before the holidays, so I hope that you had a good
 6  holiday season and I wish you all a very healthy and
 7  happy new year and I look forward to working with you
 8  on this one.
 9      I'm not necessarily looking forward to our
10  next hearing, which is that SRP expansion project where
11  we now have the Sierra Club that wants to intervene and
12  another environmental group and a group of neighbors.
13  It's going to probably take a good couple of weeks.
14  And it's just interesting because all of the concerns
15  really are not within the parameters of what would be a
16  normal CEC consideration.  They're about clean air and
17  clean water, which is an ADEQ issue as long as you have
18  permits for appropriate discharge, or the applicant
19  does.
20      And the other concern is, they want us all to
21  be on noncarbon-based energy.  And in the short-run,
22  that's an impossibility.  We have very little wind in
23  Arizona, at least projects that are wind-based, and
24  solar doesn't work at night and battery storage is
25  woefully inadequate, and a single gas-generated power
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 1  plant puts out more energy than probably 10 different
 2  solar facilities.
 3      So I will not comment any further and I'm not
 4  going to take sides.  I'm going to listen to the
 5  evidence.  But I think they have the right to present
 6  it, it's just going to drag things out a little bit
 7  longer than normal.
 8      Anyway, if there is anything that comes up --
 9  I'm sure if I receive any motions to intervene I'll
10  know about it probably as quickly as you all do.  But
11  if there's any need for us to get together before our
12  prehearing conference, you'll let us know, okay?
13      MS. BENALLY: We will.  Thank you,
14  Mr. Chairman.
15      CHMN. KATZ: You all take care.
16      (The prefiling conference concluded at
17      2:40 p.m.)
18  
19  
20  
21  
22  
23  
24  
25  
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 1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )
   
 2  COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
   
 3 
              BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings
 4  were taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a
    full, true, and accurate record of the proceedings all
 5  done to the best of my skill and ability; that the
    proceedings were taken down by me in shorthand and
 6  thereafter reduced to print under my direction.
   
 7            I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any
    of the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in
 8  the outcome hereof.
   
 9            I CERTIFY that I have complied with the
    ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and
10  ACJA 7-206 J(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,
    Arizona, this 7th day of January, 2022.
11 
   
12 
   
13 
   
14            ________________________________________
                        KATHRYN A. BLACKWELDER
15                      Certified Reporter
                        Certificate No. 50666
16 
   
17            I CERTIFY that Coash & Coash, Inc., has
    complied with the ethical obligations set forth in ACJA
18  7-206(J)(1)(g)(1) through (6).
   
19 
   
20 
   
21 
   
22 
   
23            ________________________________________
                        COASH & COASH, INC.
24                      Registered Reporting Firm
                        Arizona RRF No. R1036
25 


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(8) Pages 30 - 32







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


A


ability (2)
    15:3;20:19
able (4)
    15:8;17:9,12;28:18
aboveground (1)
    20:21
absent (2)
    28:12;29:1
accept (1)
    28:19
access (3)
    17:11;20:21;27:3
accident (2)
    13:9;14:17
accommodate (3)
    6:5,8;17:14
accommodation (1)
    18:18
accommodations (3)
    18:20;19:8,13
accomplish (1)
    10:5
account (1)
    10:6
accurate (1)
    21:2
acquiring (1)
    26:15
actual (2)
    4:23;20:2
actually (5)
    10:23;11:23;12:24;16:18;
    17:15
add (1)
    5:14
additional (1)
    15:8
address (2)
    5:11;8:16
addresses (3)
    9:12,20;10:18
ADEQ (1)
    30:17
adequate (2)
    12:14;30:3
adjacent (1)
    17:11
adjustments (1)
    28:19
advance (2)


    23:14,21
adventure (1)
    24:10
aerial (1)
    11:24
afternoon (1)
    4:9
again (3)
    11:12;22:12,25
agencies (1)
    6:13
agenda (1)
    28:15
aggressive (1)
    11:19
ahead (2)
    9:24;16:12
Air (4)
    7:5,7;13:7;30:16
alert (1)
    28:9
alleviates (1)
    28:21
allow (1)
    19:14
allows (1)
    21:3
almost (1)
    7:10
along (3)
    8:6;14:16;17:4
alternatives (2)
    10:7,9
always (2)
    23:16;25:2
amount (2)
    11:20;21:1
anticipated (1)
    26:15
appear (1)
    22:4
applicable (1)
    26:18
applicant (2)
    4:7;30:18
Applicant's (1)
    8:10
application (8)
    6:4,7,10;13:22;16:21;21:4;
    25:2;28:3
applications (3)
    26:11;27:4,17
appropriate (1)


    30:18
approved (2)
    26:12,13
approximately (6)
    10:14;11:2,7,11,15;19:5
APS (7)
    4:10,18;5:1;9:5;14:14,22;
    25:23
APS's (1)
    29:8
area (36)
    5:17,23;7:2,6,22,24;8:15,
    17,18;9:8,17,19;10:3,6,13,19,
    21,22,24;11:1,5,7,10,11,13,16,
    17,18,21;13:15;15:4,5,9;18:9;
    19:9,11
areas (4)
    13:6,6;17:13;21:10
Arizona (3)
    10:25;27:22;30:23
around (4)
    10:9;14:17,18;17:18
arrangements (1)
    23:11
arrived (1)
    9:17
assuming (4)
    15:11;17:4;18:10;27:2
attached (1)
    29:22
attitude (1)
    21:17
attorneys (1)
    4:6
available (5)
    18:11;19:20;20:1;24:22;
    27:4
Avenue (6)
    11:10,11;14:13,17;16:6;
    19:3
away (2)
    18:19;19:6


B


back (4)
    15:15;20:8;21:23;23:2
Base (3)
    7:5,7;13:7
battery (1)
    30:24
beginning (1)
    17:25


BENALLY (22)
    4:9,10,24;5:9;6:15;16:10,
    12;18:4;22:15,17,21;24:18,
    19,22;25:22;27:11,13,14;
    28:16;29:17,20;31:13
benefit (1)
    12:13
benefits (1)
    19:6
best (5)
    6:8;18:21;19:13,17;24:14
better (3)
    19:8;23:8;24:4
beyond (1)
    30:4
bit (7)
    9:19;11:3,16;19:6,12,16;
    31:6
blue (1)
    16:22
board (1)
    17:9
boosted (2)
    21:14,17
both (1)
    29:25
boundary (3)
    11:6,8,8
box (1)
    15:16
breathing (1)
    23:5
BREWER (3)
    18:1;24:13;25:13
brief (1)
    9:4
briefings (1)
    7:14
briefly (4)
    8:18;9:8;13:11,21
bring (1)
    8:20
bringing (2)
    6:3;9:25
buffer (1)
    10:9
buildings (1)
    11:22
built (4)
    11:13;15:17;16:5,6
bus (1)
    19:20
business (1)


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(1) ability - business







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    12:10
businesses (1)
    10:20


C


calendar (1)
    24:20
call (5)
    7:23,25;8:8;14:1;28:17
campus (1)
    15:25
can (15)
    6:9;8:3,8;9:8,13;12:7;14:3,
    9;21:2;22:10,11;24:7,8;27:9;
    30:1
cancel (3)
    23:15,16;24:5
captured (1)
    11:24
care (2)
    26:8;31:15
carry (1)
    23:12
case (6)
    4:5;16:14;20:9,16,18;25:17
cases (3)
    10:23;17:15;20:15
CEC (6)
    4:3;16:8,9,10;25:19;30:16
Center (11)
    12:25;13:15,20;14:6;15:4,
    16,19,21;18:17,19;19:5
centers (1)
    15:6
Central (3)
    4:2;8:1,3
certain (2)
    4:5;20:6
certainly (2)
    5:25;28:3
certainty (1)
    4:4
cetera (2)
    6:12;15:7
Chairman (17)
    4:9,24;13:25;15:18;18:1,4,
    15;22:15;24:13,23;25:13;
    26:16;27:11;28:16;29:4,17;
    31:14
change (1)
    8:3
changes (1)


    26:1
charge (1)
    14:1
checking (1)
    24:19
CHMN (44)
    4:1,11,13,15,19;5:4;6:11;
    7:19;8:24;9:10,15;12:22;
    13:2;15:11,21;16:2,16,22,25;
    17:20;18:2,6;19:18;21:6;
    22:16,20,25;24:2,15,18,21,24;
    25:14;26:22;27:1,8,13;28:11;
    29:1,5,15,19;30:3;31:15
choices (2)
    19:11,14
chosen (1)
    22:4
cities (1)
    12:3
City (7)
    7:2,3,4,4;26:11;27:18,18
Civic (2)
    12:25;19:5
clean (2)
    30:16,17
closely (2)
    12:4,17
closer (1)
    19:13
Club (1)
    30:11
coincide (1)
    16:19
color (1)
    15:23
coming (2)
    14:12;24:8
comment (1)
    31:3
comments (1)
    26:5
commercial (2)
    13:6,19
commercial/industrial (1)
    5:22
Commission (1)
    28:8
Committee (18)
    18:11;19:22;20:1,3,6,7,12,
    25;21:3,7,18;22:3;23:12,14,
    18,23;24:9,25
communities (1)
    17:17


community (1)
    17:19
company (1)
    29:6
concern (2)
    21:11;30:20
concerns (1)
    30:14
concluded (1)
    31:16
conditions (1)
    25:19
conference (7)
    4:2;22:13;23:21;24:7,12;
    31:12,16
conferences (1)
    29:7
confirm (1)
    17:24
confirming (1)
    18:21
connect (2)
    13:13;14:20
connecting (1)
    14:23
Connection (1)
    8:4
consideration (2)
    22:24;30:16
consistently (1)
    22:3
consists (1)
    10:15
constructed (6)
    11:15;13:14;16:18,19,23;
    20:21
construction (7)
    11:16,23;16:20;20:22;21:1;
    26:19,21
consultant (2)
    5:14;10:4
contained (1)
    25:8
content (1)
    29:23
continue (1)
    14:20
continued (1)
    23:4
Contrail (9)
    13:14;14:7,19,21;15:2,4,14,
    18;16:5
Convention (2)


    18:17,19
cooperation (1)
    27:23
copies (1)
    25:1
copy (2)
    25:3;29:10
corridor (1)
    14:25
Cotton (1)
    11:8
councilman (1)
    26:7
county (3)
    6:12;7:4;26:11
couple (9)
    5:18;7:18;14:15;17:15;
    18:19;20:5,15;27:12;30:13
course (1)
    6:23
court (2)
    29:5,10
cover (3)
    13:2;22:12;27:10


D


dashed (1)
    16:23
data (8)
    13:15,20;14:6;15:3,6,16,19,
    21
date (6)
    9:21;17:25;18:2;24:11,14;
    28:3
day (2)
    24:22;28:22
decide (2)
    20:2;23:9
define (1)
    9:11
defined (2)
    9:18;10:3
delivery (1)
    29:12
depending (2)
    8:16;9:1
depicting (1)
    7:21
DERSTINE (28)
    4:12,14,16,17,17;5:10,13;
    6:15;8:12;9:7,11,16;13:1,10,
    24;14:5;18:5,13,24;19:24;


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(2) businesses - DERSTINE







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    22:14;23:10;24:17;25:22;
    26:16,25;27:7;29:9
desire (4)
    4:21;6:17;20:6,13
desired (1)
    23:23
desires (1)
    6:5
detail (4)
    13:4;17:2,6;21:23
determine (2)
    24:7;30:1
developed (1)
    12:9
developers (2)
    12:1,5
development (3)
    5:23;11:20;15:6
developments (2)
    11:25;12:19
device (1)
    25:4
devices (1)
    27:6
different (4)
    14:11,22;19:19;31:1
differently (1)
    29:23
difficulties (1)
    13:8
directly (1)
    14:3
discharge (1)
    30:18
discuss (3)
    9:1;24:3;29:16
discussed (1)
    19:24
discussion (1)
    20:5
distribution (1)
    15:7
District (1)
    19:1
disturbance (1)
    21:10
docket (1)
    28:7
document (2)
    8:7;28:7
done (2)
    6:8;25:6
dotted (1)


    16:23
down (1)
    14:18
draft (7)
    8:22;17:23;22:18;25:8,19;
    27:15;29:14
drafted (1)
    22:24
drag (1)
    31:6
drive (4)
    11:22;19:16;22:6;27:5
drive-around (1)
    20:3
driving (1)
    17:8
due (1)
    19:5
DUNCAN (8)
    9:24;13:24;14:4,9;18:22,
    24;28:16;29:4
during (2)
    12:21;19:10


E


ear (2)
    21:20;22:10
earlier (1)
    16:18
early (1)
    5:23
easier (1)
    23:24
easily (1)
    17:14
east (2)
    14:22;15:15
eastern (1)
    11:11
eastward (1)
    14:16
easy (1)
    17:17
edges (1)
    17:18
edits (1)
    28:13
education (1)
    25:7
efforts (1)
    6:5
either (5)


    6:1;13:5;17:10;27:4,5
El (1)
    7:3
electronic (1)
    25:4
elects (1)
    23:14
elements (1)
    15:13
else (1)
    29:16
encompasses (1)
    9:13
end (2)
    15:1;25:21
energy (2)
    30:21;31:1
engineers (1)
    10:4
enough (3)
    10:6,9;25:6
Entertainment (1)
    19:1
entirely (1)
    20:7
entitlement (1)
    12:2
environmental (3)
    5:14;10:4;30:12
especially (2)
    12:3;21:13
et (2)
    6:12;15:7
evaluating (1)
    10:10
even (3)
    11:23;19:16;25:3
evening (1)
    19:10
event (1)
    29:2
everyone (2)
    18:3;24:15
evidence (1)
    31:5
excited (1)
    12:20
Excuse (1)
    15:24
Exhibit (8)
    7:24,25;8:3,8;13:3;17:21;
    22:19;29:21
exhibits (5)


    7:20;8:10,13;25:2;27:4
existing (2)
    14:21,24
expand (1)
    13:20
expansion (2)
    20:18;30:10
expecting (1)
    4:22
explanation (1)
    9:4
expressed (7)
    4:21;5:5,25;6:17,18,18;20:6
extending (1)
    14:16
extensive (1)
    7:1
extensively (2)
    5:18;7:5


F


facilities (1)
    31:2
facility (3)
    19:7,7;27:3
failed (1)
    27:9
fair (2)
    21:1,2
fairly (1)
    4:5
farmland (1)
    10:21
fast (1)
    28:23
February (3)
    17:25;21:25;24:14
federal (3)
    26:10,17,22
fee (1)
    23:17
feedback (2)
    7:12;12:15
feel (2)
    19:13;22:5
feeling (1)
    21:14
felt (1)
    19:15
few (2)
    14:11;19:9
figured (1)


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(3) desire - figured







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    26:1
file (2)
    28:3,8
final (1)
    29:6
find (1)
    10:5
finding (1)
    12:17
fine (6)
    8:9;9:6;21:6;24:21,21,24
first (3)
    7:21,23;10:2
five (2)
    7:20;22:7
flash (1)
    27:5
folks (2)
    17:17;19:10
follow (1)
    25:15
Force (3)
    7:5,7;13:7
format (3)
    8:25;25:15;29:24
forward (3)
    6:3;30:7,9
four (4)
    7:20;12:3;22:3,7
Friday (1)
    28:19
further (3)
    9:14;19:6;31:3
future (1)
    15:12


G


gas-generated (1)
    30:25
general (2)
    5:5,15
generally (2)
    9:12;11:6
gen-tie (1)
    20:16
given (1)
    20:10
Glendale (7)
    7:4;11:9;12:25;18:17;19:1,
    3;27:17
Good (17)
    4:9;7:12,12;8:21;9:2;12:23;


    17:20;18:18;19:18;21:15;
    24:12;27:3;28:11,14;29:15;
    30:5,13
government (1)
    6:13
grace (1)
    23:16
greater (1)
    21:23
group (3)
    7:1;30:12,12
growth (2)
    13:16;15:8
guess (4)
    7:10,20;20:8;27:23


H


Haenichen (1)
    21:21
Hall (1)
    27:18
handle (1)
    29:12
happen (1)
    16:10
happening (3)
    7:18;11:17;20:10
Happy (5)
    4:14,15;8:20;25:1;30:7
hard (1)
    25:3
heading (1)
    7:14
healthy (2)
    21:24;30:6
hearing (20)
    5:6;8:7,23;12:24;17:21,23;
    18:16;21:25;22:18;23:2,22;
    24:8;26:3;27:15;28:2,6;29:14,
    20;30:2,10
hearings (6)
    7:15,16,16;20:4,5;29:7
heavy (1)
    12:11
helpful (3)
    13:23;19:22;20:14
high (2)
    13:8;15:6
Holiday (2)
    18:25;30:6
holidays (1)
    30:5


home (1)
    22:8
hope (1)
    30:5
hotel (4)
    18:16,18,21;19:2
hours (2)
    28:12;29:3
hundred (1)
    4:4


I


identical (1)
    29:22
identified (2)
    13:18;29:14
identify (2)
    4:7;13:12
identifying (1)
    18:15
idiosyncrasies (1)
    9:2
idiosyncrasy (1)
    25:16
illness (1)
    29:1
imagery (1)
    11:24
impacts (1)
    12:18
impossibility (1)
    30:22
inadequate (1)
    30:25
include (2)
    7:2;11:2
included (1)
    16:9
includes (1)
    10:19
Independent (3)
    27:22,25;28:18
indicate (1)
    8:20
indicated (2)
    5:2;20:12
individuals (1)
    11:4
industrial (3)
    12:10;13:6,19
infections (1)
    21:16


inform (1)
    28:5
information (3)
    5:10;28:18,25
initial (1)
    10:3
Inn (1)
    19:1
input (1)
    8:22
installation (1)
    21:8
Intel (1)
    20:18
intended (1)
    13:16
interconnecting (1)
    14:15
interest (7)
    5:2,5,20;6:8,16,18;7:6
interested (2)
    6:11,13
interesting (1)
    30:14
interests (2)
    6:5,9
intervene (4)
    4:22;5:3;30:11;31:9
intervenors (2)
    4:20,25
intervention (1)
    4:23
into (11)
    7:15;13:4;14:12,18,21,24;
    17:2;21:23;25:21;27:5;28:24
intriguing (1)
    21:9
involve (1)
    21:8
involved (1)
    26:23
iPad (1)
    25:3
iPads (1)
    27:5
issue (4)
    5:12;8:19;25:12;30:17
issues (4)
    8:16;21:22;26:17;27:8
item (2)
    27:20;29:18
items (1)
    27:12


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(4) file - items







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


J


Jack (1)
    21:21
job (1)
    23:18
join (1)
    21:24
July (1)
    23:5
jurisdictional (1)
    10:11
jurisdictions (3)
    7:2,14;10:15


K


KATZ (44)
    4:1,11,13,15,19;5:4;6:11;
    7:19;8:24;9:10,15;12:22;
    13:2;15:11,21;16:2,16,22,25;
    17:20;18:2,6;19:18;21:6;
    22:16,20,25;24:2,15,18,21,24;
    25:14;26:22;27:1,8,13;28:11;
    29:1,5,15,19;30:3;31:15
Kevin (5)
    9:16,22;13:11;18:14,22
kicked (1)
    23:2
kind (3)
    8:15;11:9;14:17
Kino (1)
    23:3
knowing (1)
    22:2
knowledge (1)
    4:24
known (1)
    4:25
kV (3)
    8:4;14:15;15:2


L


laid (1)
    29:23
land (3)
    10:22;12:9;26:22
landowners (6)
    5:17,19;6:6;7:9;10:20;12:5
landscape (1)
    29:25


Lane (1)
    11:8
laptop (1)
    27:3
laptops (1)
    27:5
large (6)
    7:9;10:6,14;11:1,12;12:5
largely (2)
    5:22;13:13
larger (1)
    13:18
last (5)
    7:10;8:22;11:16;12:3;20:5
lastly (1)
    8:7
latest (1)
    26:4
least (5)
    18:9;19:22;23:22;24:8;
    30:23
left (1)
    25:24
Library (2)
    27:18;29:13
light (1)
    12:10
limited (1)
    20:18
Linda (1)
    4:10
line (9)
    5:11;6:1;12:8,18;14:16;
    16:17,18,20,23
lines (6)
    6:20;14:11,15,21;15:8;21:9
list (1)
    11:2
listen (1)
    31:4
little (7)
    15:16;19:6,12,16;21:19;
    30:22;31:6
live (2)
    10:20;17:18
locate (1)
    17:8
located (2)
    17:16;18:8
locating (1)
    12:7
location (6)
    6:1;14:9,14;15:16;19:4,17


locations (6)
    6:19;8:5,21;17:3;27:16;
    29:13
lodging (1)
    18:11
long (1)
    30:17
longer (1)
    31:7
look (2)
    17:6;30:7
looked (1)
    9:2
looking (4)
    10:2;14:11;17:25;30:9
looks (3)
    13:5;17:3;24:13
Loop (1)
    11:13
lot (8)
    7:12;11:25;12:12;13:16,18;
    19:11;24:25;26:12
lots (1)
    7:12
Luke (2)
    7:5;13:7


M


mailing (2)
    10:17;11:2
mailings (1)
    9:21
major (1)
    7:1
makes (3)
    9:7;16:25;23:1
making (1)
    22:5
many (2)
    9:12;25:23
map (10)
    7:21,23,24;8:1,2;9:25;10:2;
    14:13;17:1;29:22
maps (1)
    9:3
Maricopa (1)
    7:3
marked (2)
    8:2;22:18
Matt (6)
    4:11,15,17;7:8;10:13;11:18
matter (6)


    4:22;6:14;19:19;23:3,4;
    24:3
may (3)
    4:20;10:20;18:18
maybe (4)
    9:7;20:7;23:7;24:2
mayor (1)
    26:7
meals (1)
    19:10
mean (3)
    13:10;23:17,17
mechanism (1)
    23:20
medical (1)
    21:22
meet (1)
    10:7
members (8)
    5:5,11;7:9;18:12;20:6;22:3;
    23:12;25:1
mention (1)
    27:20
mentioned (9)
    7:8;10:13,16;11:19;13:11,
    17;16:18;18:16;20:25
metro (1)
    10:24
metropolitan (1)
    18:8
middle (1)
    14:8
might (7)
    6:13;13:22;17:18;24:4,9;
    25:4;28:13
miles (3)
    10:15;18:19;19:5
minimize (1)
    12:18
Mirage (1)
    7:3
modern (1)
    19:8
moment (1)
    18:25
month (2)
    21:18,19
months (2)
    7:10;12:4
more (9)
    7:13;8:2;11:10;12:21;14:3;
    19:7;25:1;30:3;31:1
most (4)


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(5) Jack - most







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    12:11;17:13;21:13;30:4
mostly (1)
    18:7
motel (1)
    19:12
motions (1)
    31:9
move (1)
    16:3
moving (1)
    19:18
much (2)
    12:7,9
municipalities (2)
    5:19;6:22
muted (2)
    4:11;12:22
myself (1)
    15:25


N


name (3)
    15:14,19;19:2
nature (2)
    12:6;19:15
near (2)
    14:13;16:6
necessarily (5)
    10:24;11:24;21:9;23:16;
    30:9
need (22)
    10:8;12:12,16;13:4,12,12;
    14:3;17:2,24;19:10;21:5;
    23:13;24:3;25:7,18,20;26:8,
    23;28:2,6;29:16;31:11
needed (1)
    28:5
needs (1)
    25:8
neighbors (1)
    30:12
NEPA (1)
    26:24
new (9)
    4:14,15;11:22,25;13:15,19;
    14:6;15:6;30:7
newer (1)
    19:7
newspaper (3)
    27:21;28:4,10
next (6)
    7:18,24;23:4;24:10;26:10;


    30:10
night (1)
    30:24
noise (1)
    13:8
noncarbon-based (1)
    30:21
none (1)
    5:2
normal (2)
    30:16;31:7
normally (2)
    25:10,15
north (2)
    14:23;19:2
northern (3)
    11:6,9,14
note (5)
    22:17,21,23;27:12,19
noted (2)
    14:8;15:4
notice (14)
    5:6;8:7,22;10:10;17:21,23;
    22:18;27:14;28:2,4,6;29:14,
    20;30:2
notices (2)
    9:20;10:18
notification (3)
    8:15,17;9:19
notifications (1)
    9:12
number (8)
    5:1;7:9;10:19,20;12:4;16:9;
    19:14;28:7
numbered (1)
    4:3


O


obligation (1)
    23:19
obviously (4)
    17:22;24:6;28:20,22
off (4)
    6:21;8:13;17:10,11
offices (1)
    22:9
official (1)
    26:6
Olive (3)
    14:13,17;16:6
Omicron (2)
    20:10;21:12


once (1)
    22:12
one (16)
    5:11;6:1;7:13,21,22;9:5;
    14:23,23;15:12;24:8;25:24;
    28:1;29:17,24;30:1,8
online (1)
    25:2
only (5)
    10:3;15:3;22:7;23:10;26:18
open (1)
    21:14
operations (1)
    7:7
options (1)
    19:12
order (3)
    8:14;25:8;28:15
original (1)
    25:25
originally (1)
    16:3
out (11)
    5:7;10:18,23;11:22;14:7,
    24;26:1;29:2,23;31:1,6
out-of-town (1)
    18:11
out-of-towners (1)
    18:10
outreach (3)
    5:16;6:4;9:20
over (4)
    5:9;6:23;17:6;21:19
own (3)
    9:2;10:21;25:11


P


paper (1)
    27:25
parameters (1)
    30:15
parcels (1)
    5:24
park (1)
    12:10
Parkway (2)
    11:9,14
part (2)
    12:11;16:8
participants (1)
    10:11
participate (1)


    6:17
participating (1)
    6:14
participation (2)
    7:13;11:3
particular (3)
    25:16;26:17;28:9
parties (2)
    6:11;10:23
past (2)
    20:4,15
paths (2)
    14:22;15:2
pause (1)
    15:10
paying (1)
    23:17
PDF (1)
    25:21
people (5)
    11:3;18:8;19:17;21:16;
    25:23
Peoria (2)
    7:4;27:18
percent (2)
    4:4;11:15
perfectly (1)
    21:6
permits (5)
    26:11,15,18,19;30:18
permitting (2)
    12:2;26:17
person (1)
    19:23
Phoenix (3)
    10:24;18:8;24:10
place (4)
    18:16;26:14;29:6,11
placing (1)
    27:16
plan (2)
    23:7,8
planned (4)
    14:14;15:5;16:7;22:22
planner (1)
    14:1
planning (3)
    6:23;14:2;19:20
plans (1)
    11:20
plant (1)
    31:1
play (2)


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(6) mostly - play







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    21:19;22:10
please (1)
    4:7
pm (4)
    17:25;26:4,6;31:17
point (5)
    4:25;5:3;14:9;22:23;25:18
political (1)
    6:12
portions (1)
    20:20
portrait (1)
    29:24
positive (1)
    12:15
possible (2)
    4:19;28:23
possibly (1)
    4:22
post (1)
    25:24
posted (2)
    8:6;29:7
potential (2)
    10:7;13:9
power (4)
    12:14,14;21:9;30:25
practice (1)
    29:10
pre-application (1)
    5:8
preferences (2)
    5:25;6:19
preferred (3)
    7:22;8:1;13:3
prefiling (2)
    4:2;31:16
prehearing (5)
    22:12;23:21;24:6,12;31:12
preliminary (1)
    28:4
preloaded (1)
    27:5
prepare (1)
    25:10
prepared (2)
    20:24;22:11
present (3)
    19:23;23:13;31:5
presenting (3)
    7:17;13:22;21:4
pretty (11)
    6:25;9:2;11:12;12:19;


    17:12,13,14;21:14;22:3;
    28:11,14
prevention (1)
    14:18
previous (1)
    16:9
previously (2)
    10:16;16:20
primarily (3)
    13:5;21:8,22
primary (1)
    14:5
prior (3)
    7:14;20:17;23:22
priority (1)
    26:8
private (2)
    6:22;10:11
probably (13)
    4:3;8:25;18:7;19:17;23:2,4;
    24:7;25:14,21,25;30:13;31:1,
    10
problem (3)
    24:16;28:21;29:3
problems (2)
    26:15;28:24
procedural (2)
    25:8;28:14
proceed (2)
    7:16;26:20
proceeding (1)
    6:17
process (5)
    7:11;11:4;12:2;18:15,21
Project (22)
    4:3;5:17,20,21;6:24;7:6,21,
    24;8:4;10:8;12:12,16;13:15;
    14:2,6;15:13;16:15;20:19;
    21:5;26:18;29:11;30:10
projects (4)
    12:6,13;21:8;30:23
proper (1)
    10:10
property (2)
    15:17;26:23
proposed (4)
    8:6;11:20;12:1,18
provide (3)
    20:24;25:11;28:5
provided (1)
    29:25
providing (1)
    25:4


public (11)
    5:5,6;7:9;8:7;17:4,5,21;
    26:5,6;27:16,17
publication (2)
    28:1,10
publications (1)
    27:21
publicity (1)
    5:8
publish (1)
    27:25
published (1)
    17:22
pull (1)
    17:6
pulling (3)
    17:10,10;18:25
punt (1)
    5:9
purple (2)
    15:22,25
purpose (7)
    10:7;12:12;13:11,12;14:3,
    5;21:5
push (1)
    28:20
puts (1)
    31:1


Q


quality (1)
    12:14
quickly (2)
    23:15;31:10
quite (3)
    10:13;11:3;19:9


R


Randy (6)
    6:21;9:16,24;13:10,17;
    18:22
ready (5)
    21:24;22:14;23:19;24:1;
    26:20
real (1)
    20:8
really (7)
    7:11;10:5;12:6;20:15,18;
    26:18;30:15
receipt (1)
    29:3


receive (4)
    7:19;17:21;27:24;31:9
received (5)
    7:20,25;8:7,24;28:17
recently (1)
    11:13
reconnecting (1)
    14:24
reflect (1)
    6:4
reflected (1)
    6:7
regard (1)
    5:24
regularly (2)
    22:4;25:3
relationship (1)
    7:7
renumber (1)
    8:9
reporter (1)
    29:10
reporting (1)
    29:6
representatives (1)
    9:5
representing (3)
    4:7,10,18
Republic (1)
    27:22
require (1)
    26:20
reserve (1)
    23:13
reserving (1)
    23:24
residences (2)
    10:17,19
residential (1)
    17:16
residing (1)
    10:24
respect (1)
    12:15
rest (1)
    22:8
restaurants (2)
    19:9,15
review (1)
    8:23
reviewing (1)
    22:23
Right (14)


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(7) please - Right







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    8:24;12:3;13:1;16:2;20:9;
    21:18,19;22:14,20;24:2;
    25:14,25;27:9;31:5
Road (3)
    11:7;17:10,11
roads (1)
    17:12
roadways (1)
    17:4
round (1)
    7:13
route (8)
    6:2;8:1,6;12:17;19:21;20:8,
    13,24
routes (10)
    5:25;6:3,19;7:22;8:6,18;
    13:3,21;21:3;26:13
run (2)
    26:4;28:24


S


safely (1)
    17:9
same (2)
    25:15;28:22
saying (1)
    12:23
screen (1)
    14:8
season (1)
    30:6
second (4)
    7:22;8:17;16:4;27:20
secondary (1)
    17:11
seeing (1)
    13:17
seem (1)
    25:17
sends (1)
    29:10
sense (3)
    9:7;16:25;23:1
sensitivity (1)
    28:9
sent (3)
    27:15;28:13;29:21
separate (1)
    15:1
serve (4)
    13:16;14:6;15:3,19
served (1)


    14:7
serving (1)
    15:2
set (1)
    4:1
several (1)
    20:4
share (1)
    28:24
short (1)
    20:16
short-run (1)
    30:21
shoulder (1)
    17:10
shoulders (1)
    17:13
showing (2)
    7:22;13:3
shows (1)
    8:4
side (6)
    6:1;11:14;14:13;24:10;
    25:24,25
sides (1)
    31:4
Sierra (1)
    30:11
sign (3)
    8:4;17:3,19
signed (1)
    28:6
significant (3)
    5:16;7:6;21:10
signing (1)
    28:14
signs (3)
    8:5,19,21
similar (1)
    27:6
SIMPSON (10)
    6:25;9:22;10:1;16:12,13,17,
    24;17:7;18:22;19:4
single (1)
    30:25
siting (1)
    5:11
sitting (1)
    22:8
six (1)
    22:3
size (1)
    19:25


skirting (1)
    14:17
small (1)
    27:25
solar (2)
    30:24;31:2
somebody (2)
    17:8,9
someone (1)
    17:5
sometime (1)
    23:3
somewhat (2)
    21:20,25
soon (1)
    23:3
sorry (1)
    24:19
sounds (4)
    12:23;17:20;19:18;29:15
South (1)
    16:14
southeast (1)
    11:10
southern (2)
    11:8,17
speak (2)
    14:3;29:25
speaking (1)
    11:6
specifically (1)
    8:2
square (1)
    10:14
SRP (1)
    30:10
Stadium (1)
    19:1
stages (1)
    5:23
stakeholders (6)
    5:1,17,22;6:6,22;10:12
start (2)
    23:22;26:3
Starting (1)
    14:12
state (3)
    10:23;18:9;26:11
stated (1)
    14:5
stay (2)
    19:17;23:6
still (3)


    18:20;21:25;28:22
storage (1)
    30:24
strategically (1)
    17:8
study (14)
    7:24;8:15,17,18;9:8,17,18;
    10:3,6,25;11:1,4,7,16
subdivisions (1)
    6:12
subject (1)
    19:19
submitted (1)
    8:13
substation (21)
    13:14;14:7,12,14,16,19,21;
    15:2,5,12,14,15,17,19,22;
    16:1,4,5,6,7,19
suitable (2)
    18:15;23:12
supplies (1)
    12:14
support (7)
    12:7,12;13:15;15:8;20:24;
    21:4;23:19
sure (11)
    4:21;10:8;12:5;14:4;18:18;
    21:12;24:1;27:13;28:23;
    29:19;31:9
Surprise (4)
    7:2;27:22,24;28:18
surround (1)
    13:19


T


talk (5)
    8:14,18;9:9,17;30:4
talked (1)
    21:21
TEP (1)
    23:3
terms (4)
    9:19;11:19;18:20;23:24
testimony (2)
    6:10;12:21
though (3)
    15:11;19:16;25:3
thought (1)
    16:2
thoughts (1)
    8:11
three (2)


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(8) Road - three







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


    15:1;22:7
throughout (1)
    7:10
tick (1)
    6:21
ticked (1)
    8:13
timing (1)
    28:9
Tod (5)
    8:23;17:24;24:3,12;25:10
today (3)
    9:1;11:22;21:22
together (1)
    31:11
touch (3)
    9:8;13:21;23:6
tour (17)
    19:21;20:2,3,13,24;21:3;
    22:6,8,22;23:1,7,8,15,18,23;
    24:5,10
tours (1)
    20:8
towards (1)
    14:8
Town (2)
    7:3;26:11
transcribing (1)
    25:21
transcripts (4)
    27:17;29:6,11,13
transmission (5)
    14:1,2,21,25;16:14
tried (2)
    12:7;17:7
try (1)
    23:6
trying (1)
    12:16
TS-2 (3)
    14:14;15:5;16:8
Tucson (3)
    20:17;22:5;23:3
tweak (1)
    8:25
two (3)
    14:22;27:15;29:21
type (2)
    10:25;12:13
typical (2)
    26:19;29:9


U


uncertainty (1)
    22:1
uncommon (1)
    10:25
under (1)
    11:23
underground (1)
    20:20
understood (2)
    9:3;12:6
undeveloped (2)
    10:22;13:6
unexpected (1)
    29:2
unique (1)
    11:18
unless (2)
    21:9;25:15
unusual (1)
    25:20
up (10)
    8:20;9:21,25;14:18;18:25;
    21:2;24:4,8;25:21;31:8
update (2)
    7:15;18:23
use (2)
    25:3;30:2
used (1)
    9:11
users (3)
    12:11,13;13:19
uses (1)
    12:10
using (1)
    27:21
usually (5)
    12:11;25:12;28:11,14;29:2


V


vacant (1)
    10:21
vaccinated (2)
    21:14,16
Valley (5)
    4:2;7:25;8:3;13:17;16:14
van (4)
    19:20;20:1;23:12,24
variant (2)
    20:11;21:12


various (3)
    5:21;6:6,19
vehicle (1)
    17:6
vicinity (1)
    5:20
view (1)
    17:9
virtually (1)
    22:4
visible (1)
    17:5
votes (1)
    23:18


W


Waddell (1)
    11:7
walking (2)
    17:9,18
wants (2)
    13:20;30:11
warehouse (1)
    15:7
water (1)
    30:17
way (3)
    11:15;22:2;23:25
ways (1)
    12:17
website (3)
    29:8,8,12
Wednesdays (1)
    28:1
week (3)
    23:4;28:1,2
weekends (1)
    28:12
weeks (2)
    7:18;30:13
West (11)
    4:2;7:25;8:3;13:17;15:5,12;
    16:3,6,14;19:5;24:10
western (3)
    11:8,14;14:12
who's (1)
    13:25
wide (2)
    17:12,13
WiFi (2)
    19:8;27:3
Wiley (5)


    13:25;14:4;15:18,24;16:7
wind (1)
    30:22
wind-based (1)
    30:23
wish (1)
    30:6
within (5)
    8:18;13:8;28:12;29:2;30:15
without (1)
    23:16
woefully (1)
    30:25
Word (2)
    8:25;25:20
words (4)
    7:23;15:13;16:4,22
work (5)
    12:17;18:2;24:15;28:4;
    30:24
worked (7)
    5:18,21;6:23;7:1,5,8;12:19
working (5)
    5:2;7:11;12:4;18:9;30:7
works (1)
    24:17
worry (1)
    26:23


Y


year (3)
    4:14,15;30:7
yellow (5)
    14:8;15:16,20,22;16:1
Youngtown (1)
    7:3


Z


zone (1)
    14:18
zones (1)
    13:9


1


1 (4)
    7:24;8:10,15,17
1:00 (2)
    17:25;26:4
10 (1)
    31:1


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(9) throughout - 10







Arizona Public Service Company - West Valley Central 
Docket Number and Case Number TBA


BRIEF TEMPORARY CAPTION Prefiling Conference


10:00 (1)
    28:19
103rd (1)
    11:11
122 (1)
    16:14
15-passenger (1)
    20:1
18 (1)
    7:10
198 (1)
    4:3


2


2 (2)
    7:25;13:3
2:00 (1)
    24:14
2:40 (1)
    31:17
230 (3)
    8:4;14:15;15:2
23rd (1)
    24:14
24 (2)
    28:12;29:3
28th (2)
    17:25;26:3


3


3 (1)
    8:3
30,000-plus (2)
    10:17;11:2
303 (2)
    11:13;14:13


4


4 (4)
    8:8,11;19:5;22:19
4:30 (1)
    26:4
40-some (1)
    10:14


5


5:00 (1)
    26:5
5:30 (1)


    26:6


6


6151 (1)
    19:2


9


90 (1)
    11:15
99th (1)
    19:2


Min-U-Script® Coash & Coash, Inc.
602-258-1440         www.coashandcoash.com


(10) 10:00 - 99th





		Index

		 Number Index

		1

		1 (4)

		10 (1)

		103rd (1)

		10:00 (1)

		122 (1)

		15-passenger (1)

		18 (1)

		198 (1)

		1:00 (2)



		2

		2 (2)

		230 (3)

		23rd (1)

		24 (2)

		28th (2)

		2:00 (1)

		2:40 (1)



		3

		3 (1)

		30,000-plus (2)

		303 (2)



		4

		4 (4)

		40-some (1)

		4:30 (1)



		5

		5:00 (1)

		5:30 (1)



		6

		6151 (1)



		9

		90 (1)

		99th(1)





		A

		ability (2)

		able (4)

		aboveground (1)

		absent (2)

		accept (1)

		access (3)

		accident (2)

		accommodate (3)

		accommodation (1)

		accommodations (3)

		accomplish (1)

		account (1)

		accurate (1)

		acquiring (1)

		actual (2)

		actually (5)

		add (1)

		additional (1)

		address (2)

		addresses (3)

		ADEQ (1)

		adequate (2)

		adjacent (1)

		adjustments (1)

		advance (2)

		adventure (1)

		aerial (1)

		afternoon (1)

		again (3)

		agencies (1)

		agenda (1)

		aggressive (1)

		ahead (2)

		Air (4)

		alert (1)

		alleviates (1)

		allow (1)

		allows (1)

		almost (1)

		along (3)

		alternatives (2)

		always (2)

		amount (2)

		anticipated (1)

		appear (1)

		applicable (1)

		applicant (2)

		Applicant's (1)

		application (8)

		applications (3)

		appropriate (1)

		approved (2)

		approximately (6)

		APS (7)

		APS's (1)

		area (36)

		areas (4)

		Arizona (3)

		around (4)

		arrangements (1)

		arrived (1)

		assuming (4)

		attached (1)

		attitude (1)

		attorneys (1)

		available (5)

		Avenue (6)

		away (2)



		B

		back (4)

		Base (3)

		battery (1)

		beginning (1)

		BENALLY (22)

		benefit (1)

		benefits (1)

		best (5)

		better (3)

		beyond (1)

		bit (7)

		blue (1)

		board (1)

		boosted (2)

		both (1)

		boundary (3)

		box (1)

		breathing (1)

		BREWER (3)

		brief (1)

		briefings (1)

		briefly (4)

		bring (1)

		bringing (2)

		buffer (1)

		buildings (1)

		built (4)

		bus (1)

		business (1)

		businesses (1)



		C

		calendar (1)

		call (5)

		campus (1)

		can (15)

		cancel (3)

		captured (1)

		care (2)

		carry (1)

		case (6)

		cases (3)

		CEC (6)

		Center (11)

		centers (1)

		Central (3)

		certain (2)

		certainly (2)

		certainty (1)

		cetera (2)

		Chairman (17)

		change (1)

		changes (1)

		charge (1)

		checking (1)

		CHMN (44)

		choices (2)

		chosen (1)

		cities (1)

		City (7)

		Civic (2)

		clean (2)

		closely (2)

		closer (1)

		Club (1)

		coincide (1)

		color (1)

		coming (2)

		comment (1)

		comments (1)

		commercial (2)

		commercial/industrial (1)

		Commission (1)

		Committee (18)

		communities (1)

		community (1)

		company (1)

		concern (2)

		concerns (1)

		concluded (1)

		conditions (1)

		conference (7)

		conferences (1)

		confirm (1)

		confirming (1)

		connect (2)

		connecting (1)

		Connection (1)

		consideration (2)

		consistently (1)

		consists (1)

		constructed (6)

		construction (7)

		consultant (2)

		contained (1)

		content (1)

		continue (1)

		continued (1)

		Contrail (9)

		Convention (2)

		cooperation (1)

		copies (1)

		copy (2)

		corridor (1)

		Cotton (1)

		councilman (1)

		county (3)

		couple (9)

		course (1)

		court (2)

		cover (3)



		D

		dashed (1)

		data (8)

		date (6)

		day (2)

		decide (2)

		define (1)

		defined (2)

		delivery (1)

		depending (2)

		depicting (1)

		DERSTINE (28)

		desire (4)

		desired (1)

		desires (1)

		detail (4)

		determine (2)

		developed (1)

		developers (2)

		development (3)

		developments (2)

		device (1)

		devices (1)

		different (4)

		differently (1)

		difficulties (1)

		directly (1)

		discharge (1)

		discuss (3)

		discussed (1)

		discussion (1)

		distribution (1)

		District (1)

		disturbance (1)

		docket (1)

		document (2)

		done (2)

		dotted (1)

		down (1)

		draft (7)

		drafted (1)

		drag (1)

		drive (4)

		drive-around (1)

		driving (1)

		due (1)

		DUNCAN (8)

		during (2)



		E

		ear (2)

		earlier (1)

		early (1)

		easier (1)

		easily (1)

		east (2)

		eastern (1)

		eastward (1)

		easy (1)

		edges (1)

		edits (1)

		education (1)

		efforts (1)

		either (5)

		El (1)

		electronic (1)

		elects (1)

		elements (1)

		else (1)

		encompasses (1)

		end (2)

		energy (2)

		engineers (1)

		enough (3)

		Entertainment (1)

		entirely (1)

		entitlement (1)

		environmental (3)

		especially (2)

		et (2)

		evaluating (1)

		even (3)

		evening (1)

		event (1)

		everyone (2)

		evidence (1)

		excited (1)

		Excuse (1)

		Exhibit (8)

		exhibits (5)

		existing (2)

		expand (1)

		expansion (2)

		expecting (1)

		explanation (1)

		expressed (7)

		extending (1)

		extensive (1)

		extensively (2)



		F

		facilities (1)

		facility (3)

		failed (1)

		fair (2)

		fairly (1)

		farmland (1)

		fast (1)

		February (3)

		federal (3)

		fee (1)

		feedback (2)

		feel (2)

		feeling (1)

		felt (1)

		few (2)

		figured (1)

		file (2)

		final (1)

		find (1)

		finding (1)

		fine (6)

		first (3)

		five (2)

		flash (1)

		folks (2)

		follow (1)

		Force (3)

		format (3)

		forward (3)

		four (4)

		Friday (1)

		further (3)

		future (1)



		G

		gas-generated (1)

		gen-tie (1)

		general (2)

		generally (2)

		given (1)

		Glendale (7)

		Good (17)

		government (1)

		grace (1)

		greater (1)

		group (3)

		growth (2)

		guess (4)



		H

		Haenichen (1)

		Hall (1)

		handle (1)

		happen (1)

		happening (3)

		Happy (5)

		hard (1)

		heading (1)

		healthy (2)

		hearing (20)

		hearings (6)

		heavy (1)

		helpful (3)

		high (2)

		Holiday (2)

		holidays (1)

		home (1)

		hope (1)

		hotel (4)

		hours (2)

		hundred (1)



		I

		identical (1)

		identified (2)

		identify (2)

		identifying (1)

		idiosyncrasies (1)

		idiosyncrasy (1)

		illness (1)

		imagery (1)

		impacts (1)

		impossibility (1)

		inadequate (1)

		include (2)

		included (1)

		includes (1)

		Independent (3)

		indicate (1)

		indicated (2)

		individuals (1)

		industrial (3)

		infections (1)

		inform (1)

		information (3)

		initial (1)

		Inn (1)

		input (1)

		installation (1)

		Intel (1)

		intended (1)

		interconnecting (1)

		interest (7)

		interested (2)

		interesting (1)

		interests (2)

		intervene (4)

		intervenors (2)

		intervention (1)

		into (11)

		intriguing (1)

		involve (1)

		involved (1)

		iPad (1)

		iPads (1)

		issue (4)

		issues (4)

		item (2)

		items (1)



		J

		Jack (1)

		job (1)

		join (1)

		July (1)

		jurisdictional (1)

		jurisdictions (3)



		K

		KATZ (44)

		Kevin (5)

		kicked (1)

		kind (3)

		Kino (1)

		knowing (1)

		knowledge (1)

		known (1)

		kV (3)



		L

		laid (1)

		land (3)

		landowners (6)

		landscape (1)

		Lane (1)

		laptop (1)

		laptops (1)

		large (6)

		largely (2)

		larger (1)

		last (5)

		lastly (1)

		latest (1)

		least (5)

		left (1)

		Library (2)

		light (1)

		limited (1)

		Linda (1)

		line (9)

		lines (6)

		list (1)

		listen (1)

		little (7)

		live (2)

		locate (1)

		located (2)

		locating (1)

		location (6)

		locations (6)

		lodging (1)

		long (1)

		longer (1)

		look (2)

		looked (1)

		looking (4)

		looks (3)

		Loop (1)

		lot (8)

		lots (1)

		Luke (2)



		M

		mailing (2)

		mailings (1)

		major (1)

		makes (3)

		making (1)

		many (2)

		map (10)

		maps (1)

		Maricopa (1)

		marked (2)

		Matt (6)

		matter (6)

		may (3)

		maybe (4)

		mayor (1)

		meals (1)

		mean (3)

		mechanism (1)

		medical (1)

		meet (1)

		members (8)

		mention (1)

		mentioned (9)

		metro (1)

		metropolitan (1)

		middle (1)

		might (7)

		miles (3)

		minimize (1)

		Mirage (1)

		modern (1)

		moment (1)

		month (2)

		months (2)

		more (9)

		most (4)

		mostly (1)

		motel (1)

		motions (1)

		move (1)

		moving (1)

		much (2)

		municipalities (2)

		muted (2)

		myself (1)



		N

		name (3)

		nature (2)

		near (2)

		necessarily (5)

		need (22)

		needed (1)

		needs (1)

		neighbors (1)

		NEPA (1)

		new (9)

		newer (1)

		newspaper (3)

		next (6)

		night (1)

		noise (1)

		noncarbon-based (1)

		none (1)

		normal (2)

		normally (2)

		north (2)

		northern (3)

		note (5)

		noted (2)

		notice (14)

		notices (2)

		notification (3)

		notifications (1)

		number (8)

		numbered (1)



		O

		obligation (1)

		obviously (4)

		off (4)

		offices (1)

		official (1)

		Olive (3)

		Omicron (2)

		once (1)

		one (16)

		online (1)

		only (5)

		open (1)

		operations (1)

		options (1)

		order (3)

		original (1)

		originally (1)

		out (11)

		out-of-town (1)

		out-of-towners (1)

		outreach (3)

		over (4)

		own (3)



		P

		paper (1)

		parameters (1)

		parcels (1)

		park (1)

		Parkway (2)

		part (2)

		participants (1)

		participate (1)

		participating (1)

		participation (2)

		particular (3)

		parties (2)

		past (2)

		paths (2)

		pause (1)

		paying (1)

		PDF (1)

		people (5)

		Peoria (2)

		percent (2)

		perfectly (1)

		permits (5)

		permitting (2)

		person (1)

		Phoenix (3)

		place (4)

		placing (1)

		plan (2)

		planned (4)

		planner (1)

		planning (3)

		plans (1)

		plant (1)

		play (2)

		please (1)

		pm (4)

		point (5)

		political (1)

		portions (1)

		portrait (1)

		positive (1)

		possible (2)

		possibly (1)

		post (1)

		posted (2)

		potential (2)

		power (4)

		practice (1)

		pre-application (1)

		preferences (2)

		preferred (3)

		prefiling (2)

		prehearing (5)

		preliminary (1)

		preloaded (1)

		prepare (1)

		prepared (2)

		present (3)

		presenting (3)

		pretty (11)

		prevention (1)

		previous (1)

		previously (2)

		primarily (3)

		primary (1)

		prior (3)

		priority (1)

		private (2)

		probably (13)

		problem (3)

		problems (2)

		procedural (2)

		proceed (2)

		proceeding (1)

		process (5)

		Project (22)

		projects (4)

		proper (1)

		property (2)

		proposed (4)

		provide (3)

		provided (1)

		providing (1)

		public (11)

		publication (2)

		publications (1)

		publicity (1)

		publish (1)

		published (1)

		pull (1)

		pulling (3)

		punt (1)

		purple (2)

		purpose (7)

		push (1)

		puts (1)



		Q

		quality (1)

		quickly (2)

		quite (3)



		R

		Randy (6)

		ready (5)

		real (1)

		really (7)

		receipt (1)

		receive (4)

		received (5)

		recently (1)

		reconnecting (1)

		reflect (1)

		reflected (1)

		regard (1)

		regularly (2)

		relationship (1)

		renumber (1)

		reporter (1)

		reporting (1)

		representatives (1)

		representing (3)

		Republic (1)

		require (1)

		reserve (1)

		reserving (1)

		residences (2)

		residential (1)

		residing (1)

		respect (1)

		rest (1)

		restaurants (2)

		review (1)

		reviewing (1)

		Right (14)

		Road (3)

		roads (1)

		roadways (1)

		round (1)

		route (8)

		routes (10)

		run (2)



		S

		safely (1)

		same (2)

		saying (1)

		screen (1)

		season (1)

		second (4)

		secondary (1)

		seeing (1)

		seem (1)

		sends (1)

		sense (3)

		sensitivity (1)

		sent (3)

		separate (1)

		serve (4)

		served (1)

		serving (1)

		set (1)

		several (1)

		share (1)

		short (1)

		short-run (1)

		shoulder (1)

		shoulders (1)

		showing (2)

		shows (1)

		side (6)

		sides (1)

		Sierra (1)

		sign (3)

		signed (1)

		significant (3)

		signing (1)

		signs (3)

		similar (1)

		SIMPSON (10)

		single (1)

		siting (1)

		sitting (1)

		six (1)

		size (1)

		skirting (1)

		small (1)

		solar (2)

		somebody (2)

		someone (1)

		sometime (1)

		somewhat (2)

		soon (1)

		sorry (1)

		sounds (4)

		South (1)

		southeast (1)

		southern (2)

		speak (2)

		speaking (1)

		specifically (1)

		square (1)

		SRP (1)

		Stadium (1)

		stages (1)

		stakeholders (6)

		start (2)

		Starting (1)

		state (3)

		stated (1)

		stay (2)

		still (3)

		storage (1)

		strategically (1)

		study (14)

		subdivisions (1)

		subject (1)

		submitted (1)

		substation (21)

		suitable (2)

		supplies (1)

		support (7)

		sure (11)

		Surprise (4)

		surround (1)



		T

		talk (5)

		talked (1)

		TEP (1)

		terms (4)

		testimony (2)

		though (3)

		thought (1)

		thoughts (1)

		three (2)

		throughout (1)

		tick (1)

		ticked (1)

		timing (1)

		Tod (5)

		today (3)

		together (1)

		touch (3)

		tour (17)

		tours (1)

		towards (1)

		Town (2)

		transcribing (1)

		transcripts (4)

		transmission (5)

		tried (2)

		try (1)

		trying (1)

		TS-2 (3)

		Tucson (3)

		tweak (1)

		two (3)

		type (2)

		typical (2)



		U

		uncertainty (1)

		uncommon (1)

		under (1)

		underground (1)

		understood (2)

		undeveloped (2)

		unexpected (1)

		unique (1)

		unless (2)

		unusual (1)

		up (10)

		update (2)

		use (2)

		used (1)

		users (3)

		uses (1)

		using (1)

		usually (5)



		V

		vacant (1)

		vaccinated (2)

		Valley (5)

		van (4)

		variant (2)

		various (3)

		vehicle (1)

		vicinity (1)

		view (1)

		virtually (1)

		visible (1)

		votes (1)



		W

		Waddell (1)

		walking (2)

		wants (2)

		warehouse (1)

		water (1)

		way (3)

		ways (1)

		website (3)

		Wednesdays (1)

		week (3)

		weekends (1)

		weeks (2)

		West (11)

		western (3)

		who's (1)

		wide (2)

		WiFi (2)

		Wiley (5)

		wind (1)

		wind-based (1)

		wish (1)

		within (5)

		without (1)

		woefully (1)

		Word (2)

		words (4)

		work (5)

		worked (7)

		working (5)

		works (1)

		worry (1)



		Y

		year (3)

		yellow (5)

		Youngtown (1)



		Z

		zone (1)

		zones (1)
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 1             BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and
  


 2   numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before
  


 3   the Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting
  


 4   Committee in Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 2:01 p.m.
  


 5   on the 6th of January, 2022, with all participants
  


 6   appearing via videoconference.
  


 7
   BEFORE:  PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman


 8
  


 9   APPEARANCES:
  


10   For the Applicant:
  


11        Pinnacle West Capital Corporation
        Law Department


12        Ms. Linda Benally, Senior Attorney, Regulatory
        400 North Fifth Street


13        Phoenix, Arizona 85004
  


14        and
  


15        Snell & Wilmer, L.L.P.
        Mr. J. Matthew Derstine


16        One Arizona Center
        400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900


17        Phoenix, Arizona 85004
  


18
   Also Present:


19
      Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS


20      Kevin Duncan, Senior Line Siting Consultant, APS
      David F. Wiley, Supervisor, Engineering T&D, APS


21      Randy Simpson, Environmental Consultant, Burns and
      McDonnell


22      Anna Chaulk, Federal/State Senior Regulatory
      Analyst, APS


23      Aileen De Los Angeles, Paralegal, APS
      Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Katz


24
  


25
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  This is the time set for a
  


 2   prefiling conference in the West Valley Central
  


 3   Project, which will probably be numbered CEC 198.  I
  


 4   can't say that with a hundred percent certainty, but
  


 5   I'm fairly certain that will be the case.
  


 6             Well, let me just ask the attorneys who are
  


 7   representing the applicant to please identify
  


 8   themselves, if they would.
  


 9             MS. BENALLY:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.
  


10   Linda Benally representing APS.
  


11             CHMN. KATZ:  You're muted, Matt.
  


12             MR. DERSTINE:  There we go.
  


13             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


14             MR. DERSTINE:  Happy new year.
  


15             CHMN. KATZ:  Happy new year.  And it's Matt
  


16   Derstine, correct?
  


17             MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, Matt Derstine, also
  


18   representing APS.
  


19             CHMN. KATZ:  And have we had any possible
  


20   intervenors?  I may have already asked that, but I just
  


21   wanted to make sure.  Has anyone expressed a desire to
  


22   possibly intervene in this matter and are you expecting
  


23   any actual intervention?
  


24             MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, to our knowledge,
  


25   there are no known intervenors at this point.  There
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 1   are a number of stakeholders that are -- that APS has
  


 2   been working with, but none have indicated an interest
  


 3   to intervene at this point.
  


 4             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And has there been any
  


 5   public interest expressed by members of the general
  


 6   public?  I know that our notice of hearing hasn't gone
  


 7   out yet, but I just don't know whether or not there's
  


 8   been any pre-application publicity.
  


 9             MS. BENALLY:  Let me punt that question over
  


10   to Mr. Derstine.  If he doesn't have the information,
  


11   I'll have one of our line siting members address the
  


12   issue.
  


13             MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, thank you.  And I'll let
  


14   our environmental consultant correct or add to whatever
  


15   my general understanding is.
  


16             There has been significant outreach to
  


17   stakeholders, landowners in the area of this project.
  


18   We've worked, I think, extensively with a couple of
  


19   landowners, as well as the municipalities which are in
  


20   the vicinity of the project.  And so there is interest
  


21   in the project and we have worked with these various
  


22   stakeholders.  It's largely a commercial/industrial
  


23   area and it's in early stages of development with
  


24   regard to some of these parcels, and so there have been
  


25   certainly preferences expressed as to routes or the
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 1   location of the line either on one side or another of a
  


 2   route.
  


 3             And so the routes that we're bringing forward
  


 4   in the application reflect that outreach and our
  


 5   efforts to accommodate the interests and the desires of
  


 6   the various landowners and stakeholders, and so that
  


 7   will be reflected in the application.  So there is
  


 8   interest.  We've done our best to accommodate those
  


 9   interests where we can, and you'll see that in the
  


10   application, as well as the testimony.
  


11             CHMN. KATZ:  Who are the interested parties,
  


12   that is, the political subdivisions, county, et cetera,
  


13   government agencies, that might be interested in
  


14   participating in this matter?
  


15             MR. DERSTINE:  I don't -- I think Ms. Benally
  


16   is correct that they don't have an interest and haven't
  


17   expressed a desire to participate in the proceeding,
  


18   but they have expressed an interest and expressed, you
  


19   know, various preferences for routes and locations of
  


20   lines.
  


21             And so, Randy, could you tick off the
  


22   municipalities and the private stakeholders that we
  


23   have worked with over the course of planning of the
  


24   project?
  


25             MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  There's been a pretty
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 1   extensive group that we worked with.  The major
  


 2   jurisdictions in the area include the City of Surprise,
  


 3   the City of El Mirage, the Town of Youngtown, Maricopa
  


 4   County, the City of Peoria, the City of Glendale.  And
  


 5   we've also worked extensively with Luke Air Force Base
  


 6   that has a significant interest in the project area in
  


 7   relationship to the Air Force Base operations.
  


 8             As Matt mentioned, we have also worked with a
  


 9   number of large landowners and members of the public
  


10   throughout the last, I guess, almost 18 months, and
  


11   that process has been working really well.  We've
  


12   gotten a lot of good feedback, lots of good
  


13   participation.  And we will be doing one more round of
  


14   briefings with those jurisdictions prior to heading
  


15   into the hearings to give them an update on where the
  


16   hearings -- how the hearings are going to proceed and
  


17   what we're going to be presenting.  That's going to be
  


18   happening in the next couple of weeks.
  


19             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I did receive, and I
  


20   guess I could -- I received four or five exhibits.  I
  


21   believe the first one was a map depicting the project
  


22   area.  The second one is showing the preferred routes.
  


23   In other words, the first map I have, and I call it
  


24   Exhibit 1, is the project study area.  The next map I
  


25   received, we'll call it Exhibit 2, is the West Valley
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 1   Central preferred route map.  And then I have another
  


 2   map that more specifically -- that I marked as
  


 3   Exhibit 3, we can change those, but West Valley Central
  


 4   230 kV Connection Project, and it shows where the sign
  


 5   locations are going to be, where the signs are going to
  


 6   be posted along the proposed route or routes.  And
  


 7   lastly, I received a notice of public hearing document,
  


 8   which we can call Exhibit 4.
  


 9             If you want to renumber these, that's fine,
  


10   but those should all be Applicant's Exhibits 1 through
  


11   4.  Any thoughts on that?
  


12             MR. DERSTINE:  No.  I think you have --
  


13   you've ticked off the exhibits that we have submitted
  


14   and I think that's the order in which we would talk
  


15   about them.  1 is kind of the notification study area.
  


16   Well, depending on how you want to address the issues,
  


17   1 would be the notification study area.  The second is
  


18   to talk briefly about the routes within the study area.
  


19   And then when you want to get to the issue of signs,
  


20   we're happy to bring that up and indicate where we
  


21   think are good locations for the signs and get your
  


22   input on that.  And the last is our draft notice of
  


23   hearing just for you and Tod to review.
  


24             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And we have received
  


25   that in Word format.  And we'll probably tweak it,
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 1   depending on what we discuss here today and any of our
  


 2   own idiosyncrasies.  But it looked pretty good to me
  


 3   and I understood all of these maps.  But if you wanted
  


 4   to give me a brief explanation of everything or have
  


 5   one of your APS representatives do that, that would be
  


 6   fine.
  


 7             MR. DERSTINE:  Well, maybe it makes sense
  


 8   just to briefly touch on the study area, and we can
  


 9   talk about --
  


10             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


11             MR. DERSTINE:  -- how that was used to define
  


12   our notifications, how many, generally, addresses that
  


13   encompasses, and then you can let us know if you have
  


14   further questions on that.
  


15             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


16             MR. DERSTINE:  Randy or Kevin, who would like
  


17   to just talk about the study area, how we arrived at
  


18   that -- what we've defined as the study or the
  


19   notification area, and then, you know, a bit in terms
  


20   of our outreach and the addresses that our notices and
  


21   mailings have gone to up to date.
  


22             MR. SIMPSON:  Kevin, do you want me to take
  


23   that?
  


24             MR. DUNCAN:  Yeah, go ahead, Randy.  I'm
  


25   bringing the map up.
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 1             MR. SIMPSON:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 2             The first map that we're looking at here was
  


 3   our initial study area that was defined by not only the
  


 4   engineers, but by the environmental consultant.  And
  


 5   what we really wanted to accomplish here is to find a
  


 6   large enough study area that would account for all the
  


 7   potential alternatives that could meet the purpose and
  


 8   need of the project and then make sure that we had
  


 9   enough of a buffer around any alternatives that we were
  


10   evaluating that we could make proper notice to all the
  


11   jurisdictional participants, as well as the private
  


12   stakeholders.
  


13             And as Matt mentioned, this area is quite
  


14   large.  I believe it's approximately 40-some square
  


15   miles, and it consists of all those jurisdictions that
  


16   I mentioned previously.  And there are about
  


17   30,000-plus residences -- I should say, mailing
  


18   addresses that our notices went out to.  And that
  


19   includes a number of residences that are in the area, a
  


20   number of businesses, landowners who may not live in
  


21   this area but own some of the vacant farmland or
  


22   undeveloped land that is in the area.  And in some
  


23   cases, those parties were actually out of state and not
  


24   necessarily residing in the Phoenix metro area or in
  


25   Arizona.  That's not uncommon for this type of study.
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 1   But yeah, it was a very large study area and did
  


 2   include a mailing list of approximately 30,000-plus
  


 3   people.  And we did get quite a bit of participation
  


 4   through the process from the individuals in the study
  


 5   area.
  


 6             And generally speaking, the northern boundary
  


 7   of that study area was approximately Waddell Road.  The
  


 8   western boundary is Cotton Lane.  The southern boundary
  


 9   is kind of the Northern Parkway and then the Glendale
  


10   Avenue area when you get more to the southeast.  And
  


11   then the eastern area is approximately 103rd Avenue, I
  


12   believe that is.  And so, again, it's a pretty large
  


13   area.  You have the Loop 303 recently built on the
  


14   western side, there's Northern Parkway, is
  


15   approximately 90 percent constructed all the way
  


16   through our study area.  The last bit of construction
  


17   is happening in this southern area.
  


18             But what is unique about this area, as Matt
  


19   mentioned, is it's very aggressive in terms of the
  


20   amount of development plans that are being proposed
  


21   through this area.  What you'll see, if you were to
  


22   drive out there today, is new buildings that are
  


23   actually already under construction that are not even
  


24   captured necessarily with the aerial imagery that we
  


25   have here.  And we have a lot of new developments that
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 1   are being proposed by developers, and they are going
  


 2   through the entitlement permitting process with the
  


 3   cities right now.  And especially in the last four
  


 4   months we've been working very closely with a number of
  


 5   those large landowners and developers to make sure that
  


 6   we really understood the nature of their projects and
  


 7   tried to get as much support as we can for locating the
  


 8   line.
  


 9             Much of this land is going to be developed
  


10   for business park and light industrial uses, which are
  


11   usually heavy users.  And for the most part, we have a
  


12   lot of support for the purpose and need on the project.
  


13   Those type of users, their projects benefit from
  


14   quality power and adequate power supplies.  And so the
  


15   feedback we got from them was positive with respect to
  


16   the need of the project, and then we were trying to
  


17   work closely with them on finding ways to route the
  


18   line to minimize any impacts to the proposed
  


19   developments that they have.  And that worked pretty
  


20   well for us, so we're going to be excited to tell you
  


21   more about that during our testimony.
  


22             CHMN. KATZ:  I think I was muted.  I was just
  


23   saying, that sounds good to me.
  


24             And the hearing is going to actually be at
  


25   the Glendale Civic Center, correct?
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 1             MR. DERSTINE:  That's right.
  


 2             CHMN. KATZ:  Do you want to cover the
  


 3   Exhibit 2, which is showing the preferred routes?  I
  


 4   don't know if we need to go into detail on that.  It
  


 5   looks like that it's primarily going through either
  


 6   undeveloped areas or industrial or commercial areas.
  


 7   And I don't know whether Luke Air Force Base has any
  


 8   difficulties, but you're not within the high noise and
  


 9   accident potential zones.
  


10             MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  I mean, Randy, if you
  


11   or Kevin just briefly -- you mentioned the purpose and
  


12   need.  Just identify the purpose and need, which I
  


13   understand to be largely to -- we're going to connect
  


14   this Contrail substation, which is being constructed to
  


15   support a new data center in the area, but the project
  


16   is also intended to serve a lot of this growth that
  


17   we're seeing in the West Valley that Randy mentioned
  


18   and identified in these -- a lot of these larger
  


19   industrial or commercial users that surround the new
  


20   data center.  But if anyone wants to expand on that and
  


21   then just briefly touch on the routes that we're
  


22   presenting in the application, I think that might be
  


23   helpful.
  


24             MR. DUNCAN:  Yeah.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine
  


25   and Mr. Chairman.  I'm going to ask Mr. Wiley, who's on
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 1   the call.  He's the transmission planner -- in charge
  


 2   of the transmission planning for this project and he
  


 3   can speak more directly to the purpose and need.
  


 4             MR. WILEY:  Sure.  Thank you, Mr. Duncan.
  


 5             As Mr. Derstine stated, the primary purpose
  


 6   for this project is to serve a new data center, which
  


 7   will be served out of the Contrail substation here
  


 8   noted in yellow towards the middle of the screen.
  


 9             Mr. Duncan, if you can point to that location
  


10   there.
  


11             We're looking at having a few different lines
  


12   coming into this substation.  Starting on the western
  


13   side of this map near the 303 and Olive Avenue is the
  


14   APS planned TS-2 substation.  From this location we
  


15   have a couple of 230 kV lines.  We'd be interconnecting
  


16   that substation and extending a line eastward along
  


17   Olive Avenue, kind of skirting around the accident
  


18   prevention zone, up and around, and down into the
  


19   Contrail substation.
  


20             From there we'll continue to connect the
  


21   Contrail substation into existing transmission lines of
  


22   APS to the east.  We'll have two different paths to do
  


23   so, one going north connecting in and the other one
  


24   going out and reconnecting into the existing
  


25   transmission corridor.
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 1             So at the end, we'll have three separate
  


 2   230 kV paths serving the Contrail substation.  So not
  


 3   only does this give us the ability to serve the data
  


 4   center -- as noted, the area here between Contrail to
  


 5   the west to the TS-2 planned substation is an area of
  


 6   high development.  So whether that's new data centers
  


 7   that come in, warehouse, distribution, et cetera, these
  


 8   lines will be able to support the additional growth in
  


 9   this area.
  


10             I'll pause there for any questions.
  


11             CHMN. KATZ:  So I'm assuming, though, on the
  


12   west there, that future substation is one of the
  


13   elements of this project?  In other words, we have the
  


14   substation at -- is Contrail the name of that
  


15   substation, going back east, or is that just the
  


16   location of the data center and the little yellow box
  


17   is the substation that will be built on their property?
  


18             MR. WILEY:  Mr. Chairman, Contrail is the
  


19   name of the substation that will serve the data center
  


20   in yellow.
  


21             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  The data center is in
  


22   yellow and the substation is in purple or whatever
  


23   color that is?
  


24             MR. WILEY:  Excuse me.  Let me correct
  


25   myself.  The campus itself is in purple and the
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 1   substation would be in yellow.
  


 2             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  That's what I thought
  


 3   originally.  And then when we move to the west, that
  


 4   second substation -- in other words, there will be a
  


 5   substation built at Contrail, there will be another
  


 6   substation built to the west on or near Olive Avenue?
  


 7             MR. WILEY:  There is a planned substation,
  


 8   TS-2, that will not be part of the CEC.  That has been
  


 9   included on a previous CEC.  I don't have that number.
  


10             Ms. Benally, do you happen to know what CEC
  


11   that is?
  


12             MS. BENALLY:  Go ahead, Mr. Simpson.
  


13             MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah, I do.  I believe that was
  


14   Case 122, which was the West Valley South Transmission
  


15   Project.
  


16             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.
  


17             MR. SIMPSON:  And so the line that was
  


18   mentioned earlier, the line is actually constructed.
  


19   The substation is going to be constructed to coincide
  


20   with construction of this line, but it was previously
  


21   in the other application.
  


22             CHMN. KATZ:  So in other words, that blue
  


23   dotted or dashed line is already constructed?
  


24             MR. SIMPSON:  Correct.
  


25             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  That makes sense.  I
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 1   understand that map.
  


 2             I don't know if you need to go into detail
  


 3   about the sign locations.  It looks like they're all
  


 4   along public roadways.  I'm assuming that they would
  


 5   all be visible to the public and could be -- someone
  


 6   could pull over a vehicle to look at them in detail?
  


 7             MR. SIMPSON:  That is correct.  We tried to
  


 8   locate those strategically where somebody driving or
  


 9   somebody walking would be able to safely view the board
  


10   either pulling off the shoulder of the road or pulling
  


11   off a secondary access road that is adjacent to it.  We
  


12   should be able to do that.  The roads are pretty wide
  


13   and the shoulders are pretty wide in most areas, so it
  


14   should accommodate that pretty easily.
  


15             And then in a couple of cases we actually
  


16   have them located where there are residential
  


17   communities.  So it would be easy for the folks who
  


18   live in there, that might be walking around the edges
  


19   of the community, to see the sign as well.
  


20             CHMN. KATZ:  That sounds good.  And I did
  


21   receive the exhibit for the notice of public hearing,
  


22   and that's yet to be published, obviously.  And I also
  


23   have the draft of the notice of hearing itself.
  


24             So I just need to confirm with Tod, are we
  


25   looking at a February 28th date beginning at 1:00 p.m?
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 1             MR. BREWER:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
  


 2             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Does that date work for
  


 3   everyone?
  


 4             MS. BENALLY:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.
  


 5             MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


 6             CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.
  


 7             And this time we'll probably have mostly
  


 8   people that are located in the Phoenix metropolitan
  


 9   area at least that are working for the State, but we do
  


10   have some out-of-towners.  So I'm assuming that there
  


11   will be lodging available for out-of-town Committee
  


12   Members?
  


13             MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


14             Kevin, have we gotten -- we were in the
  


15   process, Mr. Chairman, of identifying the suitable
  


16   hotel.  As you mentioned, the hearing will take place
  


17   at the Glendale Convention Center.  We wanted to make
  


18   sure that we had a good hotel accommodation, so we may
  


19   be a couple miles away from the Convention Center in
  


20   terms of the accommodations.  And we were still in the
  


21   process of confirming that best hotel for that.
  


22             Kevin or Randy, Mr. Simpson or Mr. Duncan, do
  


23   you have any update on that?
  


24             MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, Mr. Derstine, I do.  Just a
  


25   moment here.  I'm pulling up the -- it's the Holiday
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 1   Inn in Glendale Stadium and Entertainment District is
  


 2   the name of the hotel, and that is at 6151 North 99th
  


 3   Avenue in Glendale.
  


 4             MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  That location is
  


 5   approximately 4 miles due west of the Civic Center.  So
  


 6   it's a little bit further away, but the benefits of
  


 7   that facility is it's a newer facility, it's more
  


 8   modern, has WiFi and some better accommodations, and
  


 9   there's also quite a few restaurants in that area.  So
  


10   if folks need to get some meals during the evening,
  


11   they'll have a lot of choices in that area.
  


12             The motel options that were a little bit
  


13   closer we didn't feel like were the best accommodations
  


14   and didn't allow for the number of choices of
  


15   restaurants and things of that nature.  So we felt
  


16   like, even though it's a little bit of a drive, it was
  


17   probably the best location for people to stay.
  


18             CHMN. KATZ:  That sounds good.  And moving on
  


19   to a different subject matter, I don't know whether or
  


20   not you were planning to have a van or a bus available
  


21   for a tour of the route and whether or not you think
  


22   it's going to be helpful to the Committee, at least
  


23   those who are present in person.
  


24             MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  So we have discussed
  


25   that, and we will have something in the size of a
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 1   15-passenger van available for the Committee if they
  


 2   decide that they want to take an actual tour.  I know
  


 3   that the Committee has not been on a drive-around tour
  


 4   for the past several hearings, and there's been
  


 5   discussion in the last couple hearings that there's an
  


 6   expressed desire by certain Members of the Committee,
  


 7   and maybe the Committee entirely, that they'd like to
  


 8   get back to taking the real route tours.  I guess we
  


 9   just don't know whether this is the right case or the
  


10   time given Omicron and the things that are happening
  


11   with the variant.
  


12             But I think the Committee has indicated that
  


13   they desire to take a route tour when it would be
  


14   helpful and whether there is something to see.  I think
  


15   the past couple of cases there really hasn't been
  


16   anything to see.  We had a very short gen-tie case
  


17   there in Tucson.  And prior to that, there was the
  


18   Intel expansion case, and there was really very limited
  


19   ability to get to see anything of that project.  Some
  


20   of it was underground, and the portions that were going
  


21   to be constructed aboveground you didn't have access to
  


22   because of the construction.
  


23             So with all that, I think we would say that
  


24   we're prepared to support and provide a route tour for
  


25   the Committee.  I think, as has been mentioned, there
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 1   is a fair amount of construction going on, but I think
  


 2   it's fair to say and accurate that we can come up with
  


 3   a tour that allows the Committee to see the routes that
  


 4   we're presenting in the application to support the
  


 5   purpose and need for the project.
  


 6             CHMN. KATZ:  That's perfectly fine.  I don't
  


 7   know what the Committee will want to do.  Some of these
  


 8   projects that involve primarily the installation of
  


 9   power lines aren't necessarily intriguing unless we're
  


10   going through areas of significant disturbance or
  


11   concern.
  


12             I also am not sure with this Omicron variant.
  


13   I think most of us, especially those of us who have
  


14   been vaccinated and boosted, were feeling pretty open
  


15   and good about things.  Now you see all these
  


16   infections of people that have been vaccinated and
  


17   boosted.  I don't know what the attitude of the
  


18   Committee will be a month from right now -- or, a
  


19   little over a month from right now.  We'll have to play
  


20   that somewhat by ear.
  


21             I also just -- I talked to Jack Haenichen
  


22   today.  He's having some medical issues primarily with
  


23   his back.  I won't get into any greater detail.  He
  


24   thinks he'll be healthy and ready to join us for that
  


25   hearing in February, but that's still somewhat of an
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 1   uncertainty.
  


 2             I also have no way of knowing -- we've had,
  


 3   pretty consistently, four to six Committee Members that
  


 4   have chosen regularly to appear virtually.  Some of
  


 5   them are in Tucson and don't feel like making the
  


 6   drive.  But I just don't know if we want to take a tour
  


 7   if there's only three or four or five of us that want
  


 8   to go on a tour and the rest are sitting there at home
  


 9   or in their offices.
  


10             So we can play that by ear.  I just would
  


11   like you to think about being prepared, and we can
  


12   cover that once again when we have our prehearing
  


13   conference.
  


14             MR. DERSTINE:  All right.  We'll be ready.
  


15             MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman.
  


16             CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.
  


17             MS. BENALLY:  I would like to just note that
  


18   in the draft notice of hearing that we have marked as
  


19   Exhibit 4 --
  


20             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.
  


21             MS. BENALLY:  -- that does note that there is
  


22   no tour planned at the time.  So when we get to that
  


23   point or when you're reviewing that, just note that's
  


24   how we have drafted it for your consideration.
  


25             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And again, I don't know
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 1   whether it makes sense to take a tour.  I know when we
  


 2   go to our hearing that will probably get kicked back
  


 3   sometime soon in Tucson, the Kino matter, the TEP
  


 4   matter is probably going to get continued next week
  


 5   until July, so we'll have some breathing time.
  


 6             But we'll try to stay in touch with you.  I
  


 7   don't know whether you should plan for a tour or maybe
  


 8   -- or do you think it's better to plan for the tour and
  


 9   then decide not to take it?
  


10             MR. DERSTINE:  Well, the only thing I would
  


11   say about that is, we have to make arrangements for a
  


12   suitable van to carry all the Committee Members who
  


13   will be present, and so we need to reserve that in
  


14   advance.  And then if the Committee elects not to take
  


15   a tour, then we have to quickly cancel it, and we don't
  


16   always necessarily have the grace to cancel it without
  


17   paying a fee.  But, I mean, it is what it is.  I mean,
  


18   if the Committee votes to take the tour, it's our job
  


19   and our obligation to be ready to support that.
  


20             And so if there was a mechanism so that we
  


21   would know in advance, by the prehearing conference or
  


22   at least prior to the start of the hearing, whether or
  


23   not the Committee desired to take a tour, that would
  


24   make it easier in terms of reserving the van.  But, you
  


25   know, that's just the way these things go, so we'll
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 1   make sure we're ready.
  


 2             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And I think maybe --
  


 3   I'll discuss the matter with Tod, we don't need to take
  


 4   up the time now -- but it might be better to say there
  


 5   will be a tour and then cancel it than not.  And
  


 6   obviously, by the time we have our prehearing
  


 7   conference, we can probably determine that.  And I have
  


 8   at least one hearing coming up before yours, so I can
  


 9   ask the Committee whether they might want to take a
  


10   tour on our next adventure on the west side of Phoenix.
  


11             Do we have a date that you think would be
  


12   good for us all, Tod, for a prehearing conference?
  


13             MR. BREWER:  Mr. Chairman, it looks like the
  


14   best date would be February the 23rd at 2:00.
  


15             CHMN. KATZ:  Does that work for everyone or
  


16   is that going to be a problem?
  


17             MR. DERSTINE:  It works for me.
  


18             CHMN. KATZ:  Ms. Benally?
  


19             MS. BENALLY:  I'm sorry.  I was just checking
  


20   my calendar.
  


21             CHMN. KATZ:  Oh, that's fine.  That's fine.
  


22             MS. BENALLY:  I'm available that day.  Thank
  


23   you, Mr. Chairman.
  


24             CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  That's fine.
  


25             And I know that a lot of our Committee
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 1   Members are more than happy to get copies of the
  


 2   application and the exhibits online.  I always like a
  


 3   hard copy, even though I'll regularly use the iPad or
  


 4   whatever electronic device you might be providing us
  


 5   with.
  


 6             I think you've done enough of these.  I don't
  


 7   think you need me to give you an education on what
  


 8   needs to be contained in the draft procedural order,
  


 9   but I'd like to get --
  


10             Tod, do we normally just prepare that on our
  


11   own or do we ask them to provide it?  I think we
  


12   usually just issue that, don't we?
  


13             MR. BREWER:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman.
  


14             CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And we'll probably
  


15   follow the same format that we normally have, unless
  


16   there's some particular idiosyncrasy that is in this
  


17   case, and it doesn't seem like there are.
  


18             And we'll also, at some point in time, need
  


19   draft conditions for the CEC.  I don't think there will
  


20   be anything unusual here, but we'll need that in Word,
  


21   and we'll probably end up transcribing that into PDF.
  


22   And Ms. Benally and Mr. Derstine, you've been through
  


23   this, so have many of your APS people before, where
  


24   we'll post the one on the left side that will be
  


25   probably the original and on the right side we'll make
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 1   our changes, but we'll get that figured out when we get
  


 2   there.
  


 3             We'll start our hearing on the 28th at
  


 4   1:00 p.m. and run until about 4:30 or at the latest
  


 5   5:00.  And we'll then have our public comments, if any,
  


 6   at about 5:30 p.m.  And if we have any public official,
  


 7   such as a mayor or a councilman or the like, that we
  


 8   need to give priority to, we'll take care of doing
  


 9   that.
  


10             I next wanted to ask, are there any federal,
  


11   county, city, town, or state applications or permits
  


12   that have yet to be approved?  I know a lot of them
  


13   wouldn't be approved until you have your routes in
  


14   place, but I just didn't know if you had any
  


15   anticipated problems with acquiring permits.
  


16             MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, no.  There are
  


17   no federal permitting issues with this particular
  


18   project.  And so really the only applicable permits
  


19   will be the typical construction permits that we would
  


20   require at the time that we're ready to proceed with
  


21   construction.
  


22             CHMN. KATZ:  And there's no federal land or
  


23   property involved, so we don't need to worry about
  


24   NEPA?
  


25             MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  And I'm asking a question that I
  


 2   already know the answer to, but I'm assuming that there
  


 3   will be good WiFi and laptop access at the facility and
  


 4   the applications and exhibits will be available either
  


 5   on a flash drive preloaded into either laptops or iPads
  


 6   or similar devices?
  


 7             MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.
  


 8             CHMN. KATZ:  And are there any other issues
  


 9   that you can think of right now that we have failed to
  


10   cover?
  


11             MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, I have just a
  


12   couple of items I'd like to note.
  


13             CHMN. KATZ:  Sure, Ms. Benally.
  


14             MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.  In the notice of
  


15   hearing, or the draft that we've sent to you, the two
  


16   public locations where we will be placing the
  


17   applications and transcripts are the Glendale Public
  


18   Library and then the City of Peoria City Hall.  So I'd
  


19   just like to note that.
  


20             The second item I'd like to mention is the
  


21   newspaper publications that we'll be using are the
  


22   Arizona Republic and the Surprise Independent.  We
  


23   would like to ask for, I guess, your cooperation, not
  


24   that we don't ever receive it.  But for the Surprise
  


25   Independent, it's a small paper, and they publish on
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 1   Wednesdays every week.  So they have one publication a
  


 2   week, and they would need our notice of hearing the
  


 3   date that we file our application.  We'll certainly do
  


 4   all the preliminary work to notice the newspaper and
  


 5   inform them -- provide all the text that's needed for
  


 6   the notice of hearing, but we would need the signed
  


 7   document, as well as the docket number, which we'll get
  


 8   from the Commission when we file.  But just wanted to
  


 9   alert you to the timing sensitivity for that particular
  


10   newspaper publication.
  


11             CHMN. KATZ:  And we're usually pretty good
  


12   at, within 24 hours, absent weekends, getting whatever
  


13   is sent to us with whatever edits we might make, we're
  


14   usually pretty good at signing that and the procedural
  


15   order and the agenda.
  


16             MR. DUNCAN:  Ms. Benally and Mr. Chairman,
  


17   while we've been on this call we have received
  


18   information that the Surprise Independent is able to
  


19   accept our adjustments until Friday at 10:00 a.m.
  


20   Obviously, we don't want to push it to that, but that
  


21   alleviates the problem of having to have it in on the
  


22   same day.  So obviously, we still would want to get it
  


23   to them as fast as possible to make sure that we don't
  


24   run into any problems, but just wanted to share that
  


25   information.
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 1             CHMN. KATZ:  Well, absent illness or some
  


 2   unexpected event, we usually will get those out within
  


 3   24 hours of receipt, so that shouldn't be a problem.
  


 4             MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
  


 5             CHMN. KATZ:  And do we want the court
  


 6   reporting company to place final transcripts of
  


 7   conferences and hearings to be posted on your
  


 8   website -- on APS's website or not?
  


 9             MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  I think the typical
  


10   practice is that the court reporter sends us a copy of
  


11   the transcripts and we will place them on the project
  


12   website.  And then I think they will handle delivery of
  


13   the transcripts to the library locations that we've
  


14   identified in the draft notice of hearing.
  


15             CHMN. KATZ:  Sounds good to me.  Is there
  


16   anything else that we need to discuss?
  


17             MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, just one other
  


18   item.
  


19             CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.
  


20             MS. BENALLY:  In the notice of hearing that
  


21   we sent to you, there are two Exhibit As that are
  


22   attached.  They're the map and they are identical in
  


23   content; however, they're just laid out differently.
  


24   One is in a portrait format, the other is in a
  


25   landscape, so to speak.  So I just provided both of
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 1   those to you so you can determine which one you would
  


 2   like to use for the notice of hearing.
  


 3             CHMN. KATZ:  That's more than adequate.
  


 4             And beyond that, I didn't talk to most of you
  


 5   before the holidays, so I hope that you had a good
  


 6   holiday season and I wish you all a very healthy and
  


 7   happy new year and I look forward to working with you
  


 8   on this one.
  


 9             I'm not necessarily looking forward to our
  


10   next hearing, which is that SRP expansion project where
  


11   we now have the Sierra Club that wants to intervene and
  


12   another environmental group and a group of neighbors.
  


13   It's going to probably take a good couple of weeks.
  


14   And it's just interesting because all of the concerns
  


15   really are not within the parameters of what would be a
  


16   normal CEC consideration.  They're about clean air and
  


17   clean water, which is an ADEQ issue as long as you have
  


18   permits for appropriate discharge, or the applicant
  


19   does.
  


20             And the other concern is, they want us all to
  


21   be on noncarbon-based energy.  And in the short-run,
  


22   that's an impossibility.  We have very little wind in
  


23   Arizona, at least projects that are wind-based, and
  


24   solar doesn't work at night and battery storage is
  


25   woefully inadequate, and a single gas-generated power
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 1   plant puts out more energy than probably 10 different
  


 2   solar facilities.
  


 3             So I will not comment any further and I'm not
  


 4   going to take sides.  I'm going to listen to the
  


 5   evidence.  But I think they have the right to present
  


 6   it, it's just going to drag things out a little bit
  


 7   longer than normal.
  


 8             Anyway, if there is anything that comes up --
  


 9   I'm sure if I receive any motions to intervene I'll
  


10   know about it probably as quickly as you all do.  But
  


11   if there's any need for us to get together before our
  


12   prehearing conference, you'll let us know, okay?
  


13             MS. BENALLY:  We will.  Thank you,
  


14   Mr. Chairman.
  


15             CHMN. KATZ:  You all take care.
  


16             (The prefiling conference concluded at
  


17   2:40 p.m.)
  


18
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
  


24
  


25
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 1   STATE OF ARIZONA    )
  


 2   COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )
  


 3
             BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings


 4   were taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a
   full, true, and accurate record of the proceedings all


 5   done to the best of my skill and ability; that the
   proceedings were taken down by me in shorthand and


 6   thereafter reduced to print under my direction.
  


 7             I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any
   of the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in


 8   the outcome hereof.
  


 9             I CERTIFY that I have complied with the
   ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and


10   ACJA 7-206 J(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,
   Arizona, this 7th day of January, 2022.
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          1            BE IT REMEMBERED that the above-entitled and



          2  numbered matter came on regularly to be heard before



          3  the Arizona Power Plant and Transmission Line Siting



          4  Committee in Phoenix, Arizona, commencing at 2:01 p.m.



          5  on the 6th of January, 2022, with all participants



          6  appearing via videoconference.



          7

             BEFORE:  PAUL A. KATZ, Chairman

          8



          9  APPEARANCES:



         10  For the Applicant:



         11       Pinnacle West Capital Corporation

                  Law Department

         12       Ms. Linda Benally, Senior Attorney, Regulatory

                  400 North Fifth Street

         13       Phoenix, Arizona 85004



         14       and



         15       Snell & Wilmer, L.L.P.

                  Mr. J. Matthew Derstine

         16       One Arizona Center

                  400 East Van Buren Street, Suite 1900

         17       Phoenix, Arizona 85004



         18

             Also Present:

         19

                Jason Spitzkoff, Manager, Engineering T&D, APS

         20     Kevin Duncan, Senior Line Siting Consultant, APS

                David F. Wiley, Supervisor, Engineering T&D, APS

         21     Randy Simpson, Environmental Consultant, Burns and

                McDonnell

         22     Anna Chaulk, Federal/State Senior Regulatory

                Analyst, APS

         23     Aileen De Los Angeles, Paralegal, APS

                Tod Brewer, Assistant to Chairman Katz

         24
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               COASH & COASH, INC.                    602-258-1440

               www.coashandcoash.com                   Phoenix, AZ

�               LS CASE NO. TBA   PREFILING CONFERENCE   01/06/2022





                                                                     4



          1            CHMN. KATZ:  This is the time set for a



          2  prefiling conference in the West Valley Central



          3  Project, which will probably be numbered CEC 198.  I



          4  can't say that with a hundred percent certainty, but



          5  I'm fairly certain that will be the case.



          6            Well, let me just ask the attorneys who are



          7  representing the applicant to please identify



          8  themselves, if they would.



          9            MS. BENALLY:  Good afternoon, Mr. Chairman.



         10  Linda Benally representing APS.



         11            CHMN. KATZ:  You're muted, Matt.



         12            MR. DERSTINE:  There we go.



         13            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



         14            MR. DERSTINE:  Happy new year.



         15            CHMN. KATZ:  Happy new year.  And it's Matt



         16  Derstine, correct?



         17            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah, Matt Derstine, also



         18  representing APS.



         19            CHMN. KATZ:  And have we had any possible



         20  intervenors?  I may have already asked that, but I just



         21  wanted to make sure.  Has anyone expressed a desire to



         22  possibly intervene in this matter and are you expecting



         23  any actual intervention?



         24            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, to our knowledge,



         25  there are no known intervenors at this point.  There
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          1  are a number of stakeholders that are -- that APS has



          2  been working with, but none have indicated an interest



          3  to intervene at this point.



          4            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And has there been any



          5  public interest expressed by members of the general



          6  public?  I know that our notice of hearing hasn't gone



          7  out yet, but I just don't know whether or not there's



          8  been any pre-application publicity.



          9            MS. BENALLY:  Let me punt that question over



         10  to Mr. Derstine.  If he doesn't have the information,



         11  I'll have one of our line siting members address the



         12  issue.



         13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes, thank you.  And I'll let



         14  our environmental consultant correct or add to whatever



         15  my general understanding is.



         16            There has been significant outreach to



         17  stakeholders, landowners in the area of this project.



         18  We've worked, I think, extensively with a couple of



         19  landowners, as well as the municipalities which are in



         20  the vicinity of the project.  And so there is interest



         21  in the project and we have worked with these various



         22  stakeholders.  It's largely a commercial/industrial



         23  area and it's in early stages of development with



         24  regard to some of these parcels, and so there have been



         25  certainly preferences expressed as to routes or the
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          1  location of the line either on one side or another of a



          2  route.



          3            And so the routes that we're bringing forward



          4  in the application reflect that outreach and our



          5  efforts to accommodate the interests and the desires of



          6  the various landowners and stakeholders, and so that



          7  will be reflected in the application.  So there is



          8  interest.  We've done our best to accommodate those



          9  interests where we can, and you'll see that in the



         10  application, as well as the testimony.



         11            CHMN. KATZ:  Who are the interested parties,



         12  that is, the political subdivisions, county, et cetera,



         13  government agencies, that might be interested in



         14  participating in this matter?



         15            MR. DERSTINE:  I don't -- I think Ms. Benally



         16  is correct that they don't have an interest and haven't



         17  expressed a desire to participate in the proceeding,



         18  but they have expressed an interest and expressed, you



         19  know, various preferences for routes and locations of



         20  lines.



         21            And so, Randy, could you tick off the



         22  municipalities and the private stakeholders that we



         23  have worked with over the course of planning of the



         24  project?



         25            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  There's been a pretty
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          1  extensive group that we worked with.  The major



          2  jurisdictions in the area include the City of Surprise,



          3  the City of El Mirage, the Town of Youngtown, Maricopa



          4  County, the City of Peoria, the City of Glendale.  And



          5  we've also worked extensively with Luke Air Force Base



          6  that has a significant interest in the project area in



          7  relationship to the Air Force Base operations.



          8            As Matt mentioned, we have also worked with a



          9  number of large landowners and members of the public



         10  throughout the last, I guess, almost 18 months, and



         11  that process has been working really well.  We've



         12  gotten a lot of good feedback, lots of good



         13  participation.  And we will be doing one more round of



         14  briefings with those jurisdictions prior to heading



         15  into the hearings to give them an update on where the



         16  hearings -- how the hearings are going to proceed and



         17  what we're going to be presenting.  That's going to be



         18  happening in the next couple of weeks.



         19            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And I did receive, and I



         20  guess I could -- I received four or five exhibits.  I



         21  believe the first one was a map depicting the project



         22  area.  The second one is showing the preferred routes.



         23  In other words, the first map I have, and I call it



         24  Exhibit 1, is the project study area.  The next map I



         25  received, we'll call it Exhibit 2, is the West Valley
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          1  Central preferred route map.  And then I have another



          2  map that more specifically -- that I marked as



          3  Exhibit 3, we can change those, but West Valley Central



          4  230 kV Connection Project, and it shows where the sign



          5  locations are going to be, where the signs are going to



          6  be posted along the proposed route or routes.  And



          7  lastly, I received a notice of public hearing document,



          8  which we can call Exhibit 4.



          9            If you want to renumber these, that's fine,



         10  but those should all be Applicant's Exhibits 1 through



         11  4.  Any thoughts on that?



         12            MR. DERSTINE:  No.  I think you have --



         13  you've ticked off the exhibits that we have submitted



         14  and I think that's the order in which we would talk



         15  about them.  1 is kind of the notification study area.



         16  Well, depending on how you want to address the issues,



         17  1 would be the notification study area.  The second is



         18  to talk briefly about the routes within the study area.



         19  And then when you want to get to the issue of signs,



         20  we're happy to bring that up and indicate where we



         21  think are good locations for the signs and get your



         22  input on that.  And the last is our draft notice of



         23  hearing just for you and Tod to review.



         24            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And we have received



         25  that in Word format.  And we'll probably tweak it,
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          1  depending on what we discuss here today and any of our



          2  own idiosyncrasies.  But it looked pretty good to me



          3  and I understood all of these maps.  But if you wanted



          4  to give me a brief explanation of everything or have



          5  one of your APS representatives do that, that would be



          6  fine.



          7            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, maybe it makes sense



          8  just to briefly touch on the study area, and we can



          9  talk about --



         10            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



         11            MR. DERSTINE:  -- how that was used to define



         12  our notifications, how many, generally, addresses that



         13  encompasses, and then you can let us know if you have



         14  further questions on that.



         15            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



         16            MR. DERSTINE:  Randy or Kevin, who would like



         17  to just talk about the study area, how we arrived at



         18  that -- what we've defined as the study or the



         19  notification area, and then, you know, a bit in terms



         20  of our outreach and the addresses that our notices and



         21  mailings have gone to up to date.



         22            MR. SIMPSON:  Kevin, do you want me to take



         23  that?



         24            MR. DUNCAN:  Yeah, go ahead, Randy.  I'm



         25  bringing the map up.
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          1            MR. SIMPSON:  Okay.  Thank you.



          2            The first map that we're looking at here was



          3  our initial study area that was defined by not only the



          4  engineers, but by the environmental consultant.  And



          5  what we really wanted to accomplish here is to find a



          6  large enough study area that would account for all the



          7  potential alternatives that could meet the purpose and



          8  need of the project and then make sure that we had



          9  enough of a buffer around any alternatives that we were



         10  evaluating that we could make proper notice to all the



         11  jurisdictional participants, as well as the private



         12  stakeholders.



         13            And as Matt mentioned, this area is quite



         14  large.  I believe it's approximately 40-some square



         15  miles, and it consists of all those jurisdictions that



         16  I mentioned previously.  And there are about



         17  30,000-plus residences -- I should say, mailing



         18  addresses that our notices went out to.  And that



         19  includes a number of residences that are in the area, a



         20  number of businesses, landowners who may not live in



         21  this area but own some of the vacant farmland or



         22  undeveloped land that is in the area.  And in some



         23  cases, those parties were actually out of state and not



         24  necessarily residing in the Phoenix metro area or in



         25  Arizona.  That's not uncommon for this type of study.



               COASH & COASH, INC.                    602-258-1440

               www.coashandcoash.com                   Phoenix, AZ

�               LS CASE NO. TBA   PREFILING CONFERENCE   01/06/2022





                                                                    11



          1  But yeah, it was a very large study area and did



          2  include a mailing list of approximately 30,000-plus



          3  people.  And we did get quite a bit of participation



          4  through the process from the individuals in the study



          5  area.



          6            And generally speaking, the northern boundary



          7  of that study area was approximately Waddell Road.  The



          8  western boundary is Cotton Lane.  The southern boundary



          9  is kind of the Northern Parkway and then the Glendale



         10  Avenue area when you get more to the southeast.  And



         11  then the eastern area is approximately 103rd Avenue, I



         12  believe that is.  And so, again, it's a pretty large



         13  area.  You have the Loop 303 recently built on the



         14  western side, there's Northern Parkway, is



         15  approximately 90 percent constructed all the way



         16  through our study area.  The last bit of construction



         17  is happening in this southern area.



         18            But what is unique about this area, as Matt



         19  mentioned, is it's very aggressive in terms of the



         20  amount of development plans that are being proposed



         21  through this area.  What you'll see, if you were to



         22  drive out there today, is new buildings that are



         23  actually already under construction that are not even



         24  captured necessarily with the aerial imagery that we



         25  have here.  And we have a lot of new developments that
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          1  are being proposed by developers, and they are going



          2  through the entitlement permitting process with the



          3  cities right now.  And especially in the last four



          4  months we've been working very closely with a number of



          5  those large landowners and developers to make sure that



          6  we really understood the nature of their projects and



          7  tried to get as much support as we can for locating the



          8  line.



          9            Much of this land is going to be developed



         10  for business park and light industrial uses, which are



         11  usually heavy users.  And for the most part, we have a



         12  lot of support for the purpose and need on the project.



         13  Those type of users, their projects benefit from



         14  quality power and adequate power supplies.  And so the



         15  feedback we got from them was positive with respect to



         16  the need of the project, and then we were trying to



         17  work closely with them on finding ways to route the



         18  line to minimize any impacts to the proposed



         19  developments that they have.  And that worked pretty



         20  well for us, so we're going to be excited to tell you



         21  more about that during our testimony.



         22            CHMN. KATZ:  I think I was muted.  I was just



         23  saying, that sounds good to me.



         24            And the hearing is going to actually be at



         25  the Glendale Civic Center, correct?
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          1            MR. DERSTINE:  That's right.



          2            CHMN. KATZ:  Do you want to cover the



          3  Exhibit 2, which is showing the preferred routes?  I



          4  don't know if we need to go into detail on that.  It



          5  looks like that it's primarily going through either



          6  undeveloped areas or industrial or commercial areas.



          7  And I don't know whether Luke Air Force Base has any



          8  difficulties, but you're not within the high noise and



          9  accident potential zones.



         10            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  I mean, Randy, if you



         11  or Kevin just briefly -- you mentioned the purpose and



         12  need.  Just identify the purpose and need, which I



         13  understand to be largely to -- we're going to connect



         14  this Contrail substation, which is being constructed to



         15  support a new data center in the area, but the project



         16  is also intended to serve a lot of this growth that



         17  we're seeing in the West Valley that Randy mentioned



         18  and identified in these -- a lot of these larger



         19  industrial or commercial users that surround the new



         20  data center.  But if anyone wants to expand on that and



         21  then just briefly touch on the routes that we're



         22  presenting in the application, I think that might be



         23  helpful.



         24            MR. DUNCAN:  Yeah.  Thank you, Mr. Derstine



         25  and Mr. Chairman.  I'm going to ask Mr. Wiley, who's on
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          1  the call.  He's the transmission planner -- in charge



          2  of the transmission planning for this project and he



          3  can speak more directly to the purpose and need.



          4            MR. WILEY:  Sure.  Thank you, Mr. Duncan.



          5            As Mr. Derstine stated, the primary purpose



          6  for this project is to serve a new data center, which



          7  will be served out of the Contrail substation here



          8  noted in yellow towards the middle of the screen.



          9            Mr. Duncan, if you can point to that location



         10  there.



         11            We're looking at having a few different lines



         12  coming into this substation.  Starting on the western



         13  side of this map near the 303 and Olive Avenue is the



         14  APS planned TS-2 substation.  From this location we



         15  have a couple of 230 kV lines.  We'd be interconnecting



         16  that substation and extending a line eastward along



         17  Olive Avenue, kind of skirting around the accident



         18  prevention zone, up and around, and down into the



         19  Contrail substation.



         20            From there we'll continue to connect the



         21  Contrail substation into existing transmission lines of



         22  APS to the east.  We'll have two different paths to do



         23  so, one going north connecting in and the other one



         24  going out and reconnecting into the existing



         25  transmission corridor.
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          1            So at the end, we'll have three separate



          2  230 kV paths serving the Contrail substation.  So not



          3  only does this give us the ability to serve the data



          4  center -- as noted, the area here between Contrail to



          5  the west to the TS-2 planned substation is an area of



          6  high development.  So whether that's new data centers



          7  that come in, warehouse, distribution, et cetera, these



          8  lines will be able to support the additional growth in



          9  this area.



         10            I'll pause there for any questions.



         11            CHMN. KATZ:  So I'm assuming, though, on the



         12  west there, that future substation is one of the



         13  elements of this project?  In other words, we have the



         14  substation at -- is Contrail the name of that



         15  substation, going back east, or is that just the



         16  location of the data center and the little yellow box



         17  is the substation that will be built on their property?



         18            MR. WILEY:  Mr. Chairman, Contrail is the



         19  name of the substation that will serve the data center



         20  in yellow.



         21            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  The data center is in



         22  yellow and the substation is in purple or whatever



         23  color that is?



         24            MR. WILEY:  Excuse me.  Let me correct



         25  myself.  The campus itself is in purple and the
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          1  substation would be in yellow.



          2            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  That's what I thought



          3  originally.  And then when we move to the west, that



          4  second substation -- in other words, there will be a



          5  substation built at Contrail, there will be another



          6  substation built to the west on or near Olive Avenue?



          7            MR. WILEY:  There is a planned substation,



          8  TS-2, that will not be part of the CEC.  That has been



          9  included on a previous CEC.  I don't have that number.



         10            Ms. Benally, do you happen to know what CEC



         11  that is?



         12            MS. BENALLY:  Go ahead, Mr. Simpson.



         13            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah, I do.  I believe that was



         14  Case 122, which was the West Valley South Transmission



         15  Project.



         16            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.



         17            MR. SIMPSON:  And so the line that was



         18  mentioned earlier, the line is actually constructed.



         19  The substation is going to be constructed to coincide



         20  with construction of this line, but it was previously



         21  in the other application.



         22            CHMN. KATZ:  So in other words, that blue



         23  dotted or dashed line is already constructed?



         24            MR. SIMPSON:  Correct.



         25            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  That makes sense.  I
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          1  understand that map.



          2            I don't know if you need to go into detail



          3  about the sign locations.  It looks like they're all



          4  along public roadways.  I'm assuming that they would



          5  all be visible to the public and could be -- someone



          6  could pull over a vehicle to look at them in detail?



          7            MR. SIMPSON:  That is correct.  We tried to



          8  locate those strategically where somebody driving or



          9  somebody walking would be able to safely view the board



         10  either pulling off the shoulder of the road or pulling



         11  off a secondary access road that is adjacent to it.  We



         12  should be able to do that.  The roads are pretty wide



         13  and the shoulders are pretty wide in most areas, so it



         14  should accommodate that pretty easily.



         15            And then in a couple of cases we actually



         16  have them located where there are residential



         17  communities.  So it would be easy for the folks who



         18  live in there, that might be walking around the edges



         19  of the community, to see the sign as well.



         20            CHMN. KATZ:  That sounds good.  And I did



         21  receive the exhibit for the notice of public hearing,



         22  and that's yet to be published, obviously.  And I also



         23  have the draft of the notice of hearing itself.



         24            So I just need to confirm with Tod, are we



         25  looking at a February 28th date beginning at 1:00 p.m?



               COASH & COASH, INC.                    602-258-1440

               www.coashandcoash.com                   Phoenix, AZ

�               LS CASE NO. TBA   PREFILING CONFERENCE   01/06/2022





                                                                    18



          1            MR. BREWER:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman.



          2            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  Does that date work for



          3  everyone?



          4            MS. BENALLY:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.



          5            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          6            CHMN. KATZ:  Thank you.



          7            And this time we'll probably have mostly



          8  people that are located in the Phoenix metropolitan



          9  area at least that are working for the State, but we do



         10  have some out-of-towners.  So I'm assuming that there



         11  will be lodging available for out-of-town Committee



         12  Members?



         13            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



         14            Kevin, have we gotten -- we were in the



         15  process, Mr. Chairman, of identifying the suitable



         16  hotel.  As you mentioned, the hearing will take place



         17  at the Glendale Convention Center.  We wanted to make



         18  sure that we had a good hotel accommodation, so we may



         19  be a couple miles away from the Convention Center in



         20  terms of the accommodations.  And we were still in the



         21  process of confirming that best hotel for that.



         22            Kevin or Randy, Mr. Simpson or Mr. Duncan, do



         23  you have any update on that?



         24            MR. DUNCAN:  Yes, Mr. Derstine, I do.  Just a



         25  moment here.  I'm pulling up the -- it's the Holiday
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          1  Inn in Glendale Stadium and Entertainment District is



          2  the name of the hotel, and that is at 6151 North 99th



          3  Avenue in Glendale.



          4            MR. SIMPSON:  Yeah.  That location is



          5  approximately 4 miles due west of the Civic Center.  So



          6  it's a little bit further away, but the benefits of



          7  that facility is it's a newer facility, it's more



          8  modern, has WiFi and some better accommodations, and



          9  there's also quite a few restaurants in that area.  So



         10  if folks need to get some meals during the evening,



         11  they'll have a lot of choices in that area.



         12            The motel options that were a little bit



         13  closer we didn't feel like were the best accommodations



         14  and didn't allow for the number of choices of



         15  restaurants and things of that nature.  So we felt



         16  like, even though it's a little bit of a drive, it was



         17  probably the best location for people to stay.



         18            CHMN. KATZ:  That sounds good.  And moving on



         19  to a different subject matter, I don't know whether or



         20  not you were planning to have a van or a bus available



         21  for a tour of the route and whether or not you think



         22  it's going to be helpful to the Committee, at least



         23  those who are present in person.



         24            MR. DERSTINE:  Yeah.  So we have discussed



         25  that, and we will have something in the size of a
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          1  15-passenger van available for the Committee if they



          2  decide that they want to take an actual tour.  I know



          3  that the Committee has not been on a drive-around tour



          4  for the past several hearings, and there's been



          5  discussion in the last couple hearings that there's an



          6  expressed desire by certain Members of the Committee,



          7  and maybe the Committee entirely, that they'd like to



          8  get back to taking the real route tours.  I guess we



          9  just don't know whether this is the right case or the



         10  time given Omicron and the things that are happening



         11  with the variant.



         12            But I think the Committee has indicated that



         13  they desire to take a route tour when it would be



         14  helpful and whether there is something to see.  I think



         15  the past couple of cases there really hasn't been



         16  anything to see.  We had a very short gen-tie case



         17  there in Tucson.  And prior to that, there was the



         18  Intel expansion case, and there was really very limited



         19  ability to get to see anything of that project.  Some



         20  of it was underground, and the portions that were going



         21  to be constructed aboveground you didn't have access to



         22  because of the construction.



         23            So with all that, I think we would say that



         24  we're prepared to support and provide a route tour for



         25  the Committee.  I think, as has been mentioned, there
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          1  is a fair amount of construction going on, but I think



          2  it's fair to say and accurate that we can come up with



          3  a tour that allows the Committee to see the routes that



          4  we're presenting in the application to support the



          5  purpose and need for the project.



          6            CHMN. KATZ:  That's perfectly fine.  I don't



          7  know what the Committee will want to do.  Some of these



          8  projects that involve primarily the installation of



          9  power lines aren't necessarily intriguing unless we're



         10  going through areas of significant disturbance or



         11  concern.



         12            I also am not sure with this Omicron variant.



         13  I think most of us, especially those of us who have



         14  been vaccinated and boosted, were feeling pretty open



         15  and good about things.  Now you see all these



         16  infections of people that have been vaccinated and



         17  boosted.  I don't know what the attitude of the



         18  Committee will be a month from right now -- or, a



         19  little over a month from right now.  We'll have to play



         20  that somewhat by ear.



         21            I also just -- I talked to Jack Haenichen



         22  today.  He's having some medical issues primarily with



         23  his back.  I won't get into any greater detail.  He



         24  thinks he'll be healthy and ready to join us for that



         25  hearing in February, but that's still somewhat of an
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          1  uncertainty.



          2            I also have no way of knowing -- we've had,



          3  pretty consistently, four to six Committee Members that



          4  have chosen regularly to appear virtually.  Some of



          5  them are in Tucson and don't feel like making the



          6  drive.  But I just don't know if we want to take a tour



          7  if there's only three or four or five of us that want



          8  to go on a tour and the rest are sitting there at home



          9  or in their offices.



         10            So we can play that by ear.  I just would



         11  like you to think about being prepared, and we can



         12  cover that once again when we have our prehearing



         13  conference.



         14            MR. DERSTINE:  All right.  We'll be ready.



         15            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman.



         16            CHMN. KATZ:  Yes.



         17            MS. BENALLY:  I would like to just note that



         18  in the draft notice of hearing that we have marked as



         19  Exhibit 4 --



         20            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.



         21            MS. BENALLY:  -- that does note that there is



         22  no tour planned at the time.  So when we get to that



         23  point or when you're reviewing that, just note that's



         24  how we have drafted it for your consideration.



         25            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  And again, I don't know
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          1  whether it makes sense to take a tour.  I know when we



          2  go to our hearing that will probably get kicked back



          3  sometime soon in Tucson, the Kino matter, the TEP



          4  matter is probably going to get continued next week



          5  until July, so we'll have some breathing time.



          6            But we'll try to stay in touch with you.  I



          7  don't know whether you should plan for a tour or maybe



          8  -- or do you think it's better to plan for the tour and



          9  then decide not to take it?



         10            MR. DERSTINE:  Well, the only thing I would



         11  say about that is, we have to make arrangements for a



         12  suitable van to carry all the Committee Members who



         13  will be present, and so we need to reserve that in



         14  advance.  And then if the Committee elects not to take



         15  a tour, then we have to quickly cancel it, and we don't



         16  always necessarily have the grace to cancel it without



         17  paying a fee.  But, I mean, it is what it is.  I mean,



         18  if the Committee votes to take the tour, it's our job



         19  and our obligation to be ready to support that.



         20            And so if there was a mechanism so that we



         21  would know in advance, by the prehearing conference or



         22  at least prior to the start of the hearing, whether or



         23  not the Committee desired to take a tour, that would



         24  make it easier in terms of reserving the van.  But, you



         25  know, that's just the way these things go, so we'll
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          1  make sure we're ready.



          2            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And I think maybe --



          3  I'll discuss the matter with Tod, we don't need to take



          4  up the time now -- but it might be better to say there



          5  will be a tour and then cancel it than not.  And



          6  obviously, by the time we have our prehearing



          7  conference, we can probably determine that.  And I have



          8  at least one hearing coming up before yours, so I can



          9  ask the Committee whether they might want to take a



         10  tour on our next adventure on the west side of Phoenix.



         11            Do we have a date that you think would be



         12  good for us all, Tod, for a prehearing conference?



         13            MR. BREWER:  Mr. Chairman, it looks like the



         14  best date would be February the 23rd at 2:00.



         15            CHMN. KATZ:  Does that work for everyone or



         16  is that going to be a problem?



         17            MR. DERSTINE:  It works for me.



         18            CHMN. KATZ:  Ms. Benally?



         19            MS. BENALLY:  I'm sorry.  I was just checking



         20  my calendar.



         21            CHMN. KATZ:  Oh, that's fine.  That's fine.



         22            MS. BENALLY:  I'm available that day.  Thank



         23  you, Mr. Chairman.



         24            CHMN. KATZ:  Okay.  That's fine.



         25            And I know that a lot of our Committee
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          1  Members are more than happy to get copies of the



          2  application and the exhibits online.  I always like a



          3  hard copy, even though I'll regularly use the iPad or



          4  whatever electronic device you might be providing us



          5  with.



          6            I think you've done enough of these.  I don't



          7  think you need me to give you an education on what



          8  needs to be contained in the draft procedural order,



          9  but I'd like to get --



         10            Tod, do we normally just prepare that on our



         11  own or do we ask them to provide it?  I think we



         12  usually just issue that, don't we?



         13            MR. BREWER:  That's correct, Mr. Chairman.



         14            CHMN. KATZ:  Right.  And we'll probably



         15  follow the same format that we normally have, unless



         16  there's some particular idiosyncrasy that is in this



         17  case, and it doesn't seem like there are.



         18            And we'll also, at some point in time, need



         19  draft conditions for the CEC.  I don't think there will



         20  be anything unusual here, but we'll need that in Word,



         21  and we'll probably end up transcribing that into PDF.



         22  And Ms. Benally and Mr. Derstine, you've been through



         23  this, so have many of your APS people before, where



         24  we'll post the one on the left side that will be



         25  probably the original and on the right side we'll make
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          1  our changes, but we'll get that figured out when we get



          2  there.



          3            We'll start our hearing on the 28th at



          4  1:00 p.m. and run until about 4:30 or at the latest



          5  5:00.  And we'll then have our public comments, if any,



          6  at about 5:30 p.m.  And if we have any public official,



          7  such as a mayor or a councilman or the like, that we



          8  need to give priority to, we'll take care of doing



          9  that.



         10            I next wanted to ask, are there any federal,



         11  county, city, town, or state applications or permits



         12  that have yet to be approved?  I know a lot of them



         13  wouldn't be approved until you have your routes in



         14  place, but I just didn't know if you had any



         15  anticipated problems with acquiring permits.



         16            MR. DERSTINE:  Mr. Chairman, no.  There are



         17  no federal permitting issues with this particular



         18  project.  And so really the only applicable permits



         19  will be the typical construction permits that we would



         20  require at the time that we're ready to proceed with



         21  construction.



         22            CHMN. KATZ:  And there's no federal land or



         23  property involved, so we don't need to worry about



         24  NEPA?



         25            MR. DERSTINE:  That's correct.
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          1            CHMN. KATZ:  And I'm asking a question that I



          2  already know the answer to, but I'm assuming that there



          3  will be good WiFi and laptop access at the facility and



          4  the applications and exhibits will be available either



          5  on a flash drive preloaded into either laptops or iPads



          6  or similar devices?



          7            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.



          8            CHMN. KATZ:  And are there any other issues



          9  that you can think of right now that we have failed to



         10  cover?



         11            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, I have just a



         12  couple of items I'd like to note.



         13            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure, Ms. Benally.



         14            MS. BENALLY:  Thank you.  In the notice of



         15  hearing, or the draft that we've sent to you, the two



         16  public locations where we will be placing the



         17  applications and transcripts are the Glendale Public



         18  Library and then the City of Peoria City Hall.  So I'd



         19  just like to note that.



         20            The second item I'd like to mention is the



         21  newspaper publications that we'll be using are the



         22  Arizona Republic and the Surprise Independent.  We



         23  would like to ask for, I guess, your cooperation, not



         24  that we don't ever receive it.  But for the Surprise



         25  Independent, it's a small paper, and they publish on
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          1  Wednesdays every week.  So they have one publication a



          2  week, and they would need our notice of hearing the



          3  date that we file our application.  We'll certainly do



          4  all the preliminary work to notice the newspaper and



          5  inform them -- provide all the text that's needed for



          6  the notice of hearing, but we would need the signed



          7  document, as well as the docket number, which we'll get



          8  from the Commission when we file.  But just wanted to



          9  alert you to the timing sensitivity for that particular



         10  newspaper publication.



         11            CHMN. KATZ:  And we're usually pretty good



         12  at, within 24 hours, absent weekends, getting whatever



         13  is sent to us with whatever edits we might make, we're



         14  usually pretty good at signing that and the procedural



         15  order and the agenda.



         16            MR. DUNCAN:  Ms. Benally and Mr. Chairman,



         17  while we've been on this call we have received



         18  information that the Surprise Independent is able to



         19  accept our adjustments until Friday at 10:00 a.m.



         20  Obviously, we don't want to push it to that, but that



         21  alleviates the problem of having to have it in on the



         22  same day.  So obviously, we still would want to get it



         23  to them as fast as possible to make sure that we don't



         24  run into any problems, but just wanted to share that



         25  information.
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          1            CHMN. KATZ:  Well, absent illness or some



          2  unexpected event, we usually will get those out within



          3  24 hours of receipt, so that shouldn't be a problem.



          4            MR. DUNCAN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.



          5            CHMN. KATZ:  And do we want the court



          6  reporting company to place final transcripts of



          7  conferences and hearings to be posted on your



          8  website -- on APS's website or not?



          9            MR. DERSTINE:  Yes.  I think the typical



         10  practice is that the court reporter sends us a copy of



         11  the transcripts and we will place them on the project



         12  website.  And then I think they will handle delivery of



         13  the transcripts to the library locations that we've



         14  identified in the draft notice of hearing.



         15            CHMN. KATZ:  Sounds good to me.  Is there



         16  anything else that we need to discuss?



         17            MS. BENALLY:  Mr. Chairman, just one other



         18  item.



         19            CHMN. KATZ:  Sure.



         20            MS. BENALLY:  In the notice of hearing that



         21  we sent to you, there are two Exhibit As that are



         22  attached.  They're the map and they are identical in



         23  content; however, they're just laid out differently.



         24  One is in a portrait format, the other is in a



         25  landscape, so to speak.  So I just provided both of
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          1  those to you so you can determine which one you would



          2  like to use for the notice of hearing.



          3            CHMN. KATZ:  That's more than adequate.



          4            And beyond that, I didn't talk to most of you



          5  before the holidays, so I hope that you had a good



          6  holiday season and I wish you all a very healthy and



          7  happy new year and I look forward to working with you



          8  on this one.



          9            I'm not necessarily looking forward to our



         10  next hearing, which is that SRP expansion project where



         11  we now have the Sierra Club that wants to intervene and



         12  another environmental group and a group of neighbors.



         13  It's going to probably take a good couple of weeks.



         14  And it's just interesting because all of the concerns



         15  really are not within the parameters of what would be a



         16  normal CEC consideration.  They're about clean air and



         17  clean water, which is an ADEQ issue as long as you have



         18  permits for appropriate discharge, or the applicant



         19  does.



         20            And the other concern is, they want us all to



         21  be on noncarbon-based energy.  And in the short-run,



         22  that's an impossibility.  We have very little wind in



         23  Arizona, at least projects that are wind-based, and



         24  solar doesn't work at night and battery storage is



         25  woefully inadequate, and a single gas-generated power
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          1  plant puts out more energy than probably 10 different



          2  solar facilities.



          3            So I will not comment any further and I'm not



          4  going to take sides.  I'm going to listen to the



          5  evidence.  But I think they have the right to present



          6  it, it's just going to drag things out a little bit



          7  longer than normal.



          8            Anyway, if there is anything that comes up --



          9  I'm sure if I receive any motions to intervene I'll



         10  know about it probably as quickly as you all do.  But



         11  if there's any need for us to get together before our



         12  prehearing conference, you'll let us know, okay?



         13            MS. BENALLY:  We will.  Thank you,



         14  Mr. Chairman.



         15            CHMN. KATZ:  You all take care.



         16            (The prefiling conference concluded at



         17  2:40 p.m.)
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          1  STATE OF ARIZONA    )



          2  COUNTY OF MARICOPA  )



          3

                       BE IT KNOWN that the foregoing proceedings

          4  were taken before me; that the foregoing pages are a

             full, true, and accurate record of the proceedings all

          5  done to the best of my skill and ability; that the

             proceedings were taken down by me in shorthand and

          6  thereafter reduced to print under my direction.



          7            I CERTIFY that I am in no way related to any

             of the parties hereto nor am I in any way interested in

          8  the outcome hereof.



          9            I CERTIFY that I have complied with the

             ethical obligations set forth in ACJA 7-206(F)(3) and

         10  ACJA 7-206 J(1)(g)(1) and (2).  Dated at Phoenix,

             Arizona, this 7th day of January, 2022.
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